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Company   
Type of business 

Address 

S P V I Public Company Limited

S P V I Public Company Limited’s core business is a reseller of Apple products,  

including computers, iOS devices (iPod, iPad, iPhone) and various other  

accessories. It also distributes products compatible with Apple, such as hard  

drives for video storage, portable hard drives, printed and graphic products.  

SPVI also distributes products associated with iOS devices, such as speakers, 

headphones, protective cases and screen protectors.

213/58-59 Soi Ladprao 94, Sriwara Road, Phlapphla, Wangthonglang Bangkok 

 10310

Company Registered Number  0107556000264

Website   www.spvi.co.th

Telephone no.   0-2559-2901-10

Fax no.    0-2559-2488

Registered capital 200,000,000 Baht

Paid-up capital  200,000,000 Baht

Par value  0.50Baht

Amount and type of 

Outstanding Shares 400,000,000 Ordinary shares

Investor Relations
Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol  Managing Director

Mr. Pheerapol Amphan  Company Secretary / Vice President (Accounting and Finance)

Miss Sunsanee Horanikom Assistant Company Secretary

Other Relevant Information 
1. Share Registar Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

62 Stock Exchange of Thailand Ratchadapisek Road, Klong Toey, 

 Bangkok 10110

Tel : +66 (0) 2229-2800 , +66(0)2229-2888  Fax : +66 (0) 2359-1259

2. Auditor Mr. Wichart Lokatekrawee

C่rtii่d	Public	Accountant	No.44ิะ
EY	O้ic่	Limit่d
าาrd	Floorห	Lak่	Ratchada	O้ic่	Compl่x
193/136-137 Ratchadapisek Road, Bangkok 10110

Tel : +66 (0) 2264-0777

Fax : +66 (0) 2264-0789-90 
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Message from Chairman 
of the Board and Executive Chairman

Mr. Min Intanate  
Executive Chairman

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse
Chairman of the Board  

During 2014, SPVI encountered challenges and obstacles, arising from the domestic economic slow down 

and	 th่	 luctuation	 in	 global	 ่conomyห	 r่sulting	 in	 th่	 r่duction	 o้	 both	privat่	 and	gov่rnm่nt	 inv่stm่nt.	 
Apart from these, consumers became more cautious on their spending which created negative impact to the IT 

business as a whole, including SPVI. In addition, the new products launched were delayed towards the end of the 

inancial	y่ar	which	unavoidably	a้้่ct่d	th่	company’s	r่v่nu่	in	ั0ะ4.

Despite the unfavorable factors to the business climate, SPVI staff put extra effort to control our expenses while 

maintaining	high	standard	o้	custom่rs	s่rvic่sห	r่sulting	in	our	ability	to	maintain	th่	proit	 l่v่l	clos่d	to	th่	
previous year.

Moreover  the company has established 6 new outlets to expand market coverage  and to provide services in the 

high potential areas to be ready for the anticipated economy recovery.

Looking forward, as the rapid change in technology trend continues, new products will be launched in 2015, coupled 

with the Asean regional (A.E.C.) market expansion and the government’s policy in focusing on digital economy, 

these positive factors are expected to enhance our business in 2015.

On behalf of the board of directors and Executive Committee, we would like to express our sincere appreciation to 

all customers, shareholders, business partners, management team and all company employee who continuously 

support  SPVI.  We can assure you that SPVI will operate cautiously, transparently, ethically and continue our social 

contribution for the best interest of our customers and shareholders.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

2014 2013
Apple Products

Non-Apple Products

Services

Other

Apple Products

Non-Apple Products

Services

Other

0.53 %

8.64%

0.47 %

REVENUE COMPARISONS 2014
Total Revenues for the year 2014

วะศ	 Basic	่arnings	p่r	shar่	is	calculat่d	by	dividing	proit	้or	th่	y่ar	ว่xcluding	oth่r	compr่h่nsiv่	incom่ศ		
 by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

(2) On 10 April 2013, The par value of Company’s ordinary share has been change from 10 Baht per share to 

0.50 Baht each

For the year ending of December 31 

Total Assets 

Total Liabilities 

Shareholders’ Equity 

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses

Net Profit 

Financial Ratio 

Net Profit Margin (%) 

Debt to Equity Ratio (times) 

Return on Assets (%) 

Return on Equity (%) 

Information per share
(1) Basic Earnings per share (Baht)  

Number of shares-Issued and paid up (share: Million) 
(2) Par value per share (Baht) 

426.29

147.23

279.06

1,958.38

1,942.66

15.72

0.80

0.53

3.69

5.63

0.04

400

0.50

419.12

149.25

269.87

2,303.00

2,286.74

16.26

0.71

0.55

3.88

6.02

0.06

400

0.50

524.71

302.91

221.80

2,520.08

2,455.04

45.88

1.82

1.37

8.74

20.69

3.82

12

10.00

201220132014

88.52 % 90.96%

10.45 %

0.41 %

0.61 %
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01 02
Mr. Min Intanate  
Director and Executive Chairman

Age 60 Years

Shareholding Percentage  0.08%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  6 January 2011

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse
Chairman of the Board  and Chairman of Audit Committee

Age 67 Years

Shareholding Percentage  0.10%  as of  30 Dec 2014

Appointment Date  29 October 2012

Educations
• Mast่r	o้	Engin่่ring	ว	Comput่r	Sci่nc่	ศห	Univ่rsity	o้	N่w

South Wales,  Australia

• C่rtiicat่	Dir่ctor	C่rtiication	Program	วDCPศห	ิ/ั00ะ
• C่rtiicat่	National	D่้่nc่	Coll่g่ห	าา7

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2012-Present Chairman of the Board and Chairman of 

Audit Committee 

S P V I Public Company Limited

2014 - Present Member of Financial Institutions Policy Committee

Bank of Thailand

2011-2014 Advisor to the Board 

o้	National	Cr่dit	Bur่au	Company	Limit่d
2011-Present Director

Electronic Transactions Development Agency 

Ministry of Information and Communication 

Technology

2010-2013 Chairman of the Board

Thai Digital ID Company Limited

1988-2013 Chairman of the Board

Processing Center Company Limited

2010 - 2012 Member of the Electronic Transaction Committee

Ministry of Information and Communication 

Technology

2005-2012 Chairman of the Board

National	ITMX	Company	Limit่d
1998-2010 Executive Director

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

1971-2010 Last Position – Senior Executive Vice-president

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Educations
• Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws,  Dominican University of

California, USA

• Honorary Doctoral Degree in Science, Information

Technology for Management,  Mahasarakham University

• Honorary Bachelor Degree of Science, Computer Science,

Faculty of Engineering and Agricultural Technology for

Management, Rajamangala University of Technology

Thanyaburi

• Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute of Technology,

Taiwan

• Thailand	Insuranc่	L่ad่rship	Programห	Class	ะห	O้ic่
of Insurance Commission

• C่rtiicat่	Dir่ctor	Accr่ditation	Program	วDAPศห	าี/ั00ิ
• C่rtiicat่	Rol่	o้	th่	Chairman	Program	วRCPศห	ะั/ั00ิ

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2011-Present Director & Executive Chairman  

S P V I Public Company Limited

ั0ะา-Pr่s่nt	 Dir่ctor	&	Chi่้	Ex่cutiv่	O้ic่r
SVOA Public Company Limited

2008-Present Director

ABIKS Development  Company Limited

2006-Present Chairman of the Board

D&B (Thailand)  Company Limited

2000-Present Director

National	Cr่dit	Bur่au	Company	Limit่d
1996-Present Director & Executive Chairman

IT City Public Company Limited 
1995-Present Director & Executive Chairman

Core & Peak  Company Limited

1989-Present Director & Executive Chairman 

ARIP Public Company Limited 
1987-Present Director & Executive Chairman

Advanced Research Group Company Limited
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03 04
Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol  
Director, Executive Director, Member of Risk Management 

Committee and Managing Director

Age 53 Years

Shareholding Percentage  6.33%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  6 January 2011

Mr. Narathorn Wongvises
Director and Chairman of Risk Management Committee

Age 61 Years 

Shareholding Percentage  1.26%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  6 January 2011

Educations
• Master of Science Industrial and Systems Engineering,

San Jose State  University, USA

• C่rtiicat่ห	Dir่ctor	Accr่ditation	Program	วDAPศห	7/ั004

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2011-Present Director

S P V I Public Company Limited

2012-Present Advisor

Silverlake (Thailand) Limited

2012-Present Advisor

AR Elastomer Company Limited

2012-Present Chairman of the Board

PCC International Company Limited

2011-Present Advisor

Advanced Research Group Company Limited

2007-2012 Director

Krung Thai Card Public Company Limited

2006-2012 Managing Director

KTB Computer Services Company Limited

Educations
• Mast่r	o้	Busin่ss	Administrationห	Univ่rsity	o้	N่w	Hav่nห
 U.S.A.

• C่rtiicat่	Dir่ctor	Accr่ditation	Program	วDAPศห	SET	ั0ะั

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2011-Present Director

S P V I Public Company Limited

1996-Present Director

S P V Digital Service Company Limited

1994-Present Director

S P V Advance Corporation  Limited
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05 06
Mr. Sujin Suwannagate
Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 

Age 64 Years 

Shareholding Percentage  0.08%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  29 October 2012

Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 
Director, Executive Director , Member of Risk Management 

Committee and Vice President (Operations)

Age 54 Years

Shareholding Percentage  8.32%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  6 January 2011

Educations
• Master of Business Administration, Major in Finance,

Univ่rsity	o้	N่w		Hav่nห	U.S.A.
• Master of Computer Information System, University of

N่w	Hav่nห	U.S.A.
• C่rtiicat่	Dir่ctor	Accr่ditation	Program	วDAPศห	SET	ั0ะั

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2011-Present Director

S P V I Public Company Limited

1996-Present Director

S P V Digital Service Company Limited

1994-Present Director

S P V Advance Corporation Limited 

Educations
• Master of Business Administration, Long Island University,

U.S.A.

• C่rtiicat่	Dir่ctor	Accr่ditation	Program	วDAPศห	SET	ั0ะั

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2012-Present Independent Director and Member of Audit 

Committee 

S P V I Public Company Limited

2008-2014 Director

Siam City Leasing - Factoring Public

Company Limited

1999-2011 Director and Member of Audit Committee

National	Cr่dit	Bur่au	Company	Limit่d
2008-2010 Director and Chairman of Audit Committee

Siam City Securities Company Limited

1984-2010 Last Position - Executive Vice President

Siam City Bank Public Company Limited
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07

Mrs. Susama Rativanich 
Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee

Age 37 Years

Shareholding Percentage  0.08%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  29 October 2012

Educations
• Master of Science in Information Systems, American University,

 USA

• C่rtiicat่	Dir่ctor	Accr่ditation	Program	วDAPศห	SET	ั0ะั

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2012-Present Independent Director and Member of Audit 

Committee

S P V I Public Company Limited

2012-Present Assistant Vice President, General 

Administration Division

MCOT Public Company Limited

2011-2012 Acting Assistant Vice President, General 

Administration Division

MCOT Public Company Limited

2009-2012 Senior Secretary to Chairman

MCOT Public Company Limited
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Executive Committee

Mr. Min Intanate  
Director and Executive Chairman

Age 60 Years

Shareholding Percentage  0.08%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  6 January 2011

Educations
• Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws,  Dominican University of

California, USA

• Honorary Doctoral Degree in Science, Information

Technology for Management,  Mahasarakham University

• Honorary Bachelor Degree of Science, Computer Science,

Faculty of Engineering and Agricultural Technology for

Management, Rajamangala University of Technology

Thanyaburi

• Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute of Technology,

Taiwan

• Thailand	Insuranc่	L่ad่rship	Programห	Class	ะห	O้ic่
of Insurance Commission

• C่rtiicat่	Dir่ctor	Accr่ditation	Program	วDAPศห	าี/ั00ิ
• C่rtiicat่	Rol่	o้	th่	Chairman	Program	วRCPศห	ะั/ั00ิ

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2011-Present Director & Executive Chairman  

S P V I Public Company Limited

ั0ะา-Pr่s่nt	 Dir่ctor	&	Chi่้	Ex่cutiv่	O้ic่r
SVOA Public Company Limited

2008-Present Director

ABIKS Development  Company Limited

2006-Present Chairman of the Board

D&B (Thailand)  Company Limited

2000-Present Director

National	Cr่dit	Bur่au	Company	Limit่d
1996-Present Director & Executive Chairman

IT City Public Company Limited 
1995-Present Director & Executive Chairman

Core & Peak  Company Limited

1989-Present Director & Executive Chairman 

ARIP Public Company Limited 
1987-Present Director & Executive Chairman

Advanced Research Group Company Limited

Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol  
Director, Executive Director, Member of Risk Management 

Committee and Managing Director

Age 53 Years

Shareholding Percentage  6.33%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  6 January 2011

Educations
• Mast่r	o้	Busin่ss	Administrationห	Univ่rsity	o้	N่w	Hav่nห

U.S.A.

• C่rtiicat่	Dir่ctor	Accr่ditation	Program	วDAPศห	SET	ั0ะั

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2011-Present Director

S P V I Public Company Limited

1996-Present Director

S P V Digital Service Company Limited

1994-Present Director

S P V Advance Corporation  Limited
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Mr. Pheerapol Amphan 
Director, Executive Director , Member of Risk Management 

Committee and Vice President (Accounting and Finance)

Age 50

Shareholding Percentage  0.02%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  6 January 2011

Educations
• Master of Business Administration Lindenwood College, U.S.A.

• C่rtiicat่	Company	S่cr่tary	Program	วCSPศห	ิ0/ั0ะา

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2011-Present Executive Director and Vice President (Accounting

and Finance) S P V I Public Company Limited

1994-2010 Director, Accounting and Financial Management,

CMGRP (Thailand) Ltd.

Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 
Director, Executive Director , Member of Risk Management 

Committee and Vice President (Operations)

Age 54 Years

Shareholding Percentage  8.32%  as of 30 Dec 2014 

Appointment Date  6 January 2011

Educations
• Master of Business Administration, Major in Finance,

Univ่rsity	o้	N่w		Hav่nห	U.S.A.
• Master of Computer Information System, University of

N่w	Hav่nห	U.S.A.
• C่rtiicat่	Dir่ctor	Accr่ditation	Program	วDAPศห	SET	ั0ะั

Work Experience for the Past 5 Years
2011-Present Director

S P V I Public Company Limited

1996-Present Director

S P V Digital Service Company Limited

1994-Present Director

S P V Advance Corporation Limited 
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Vision

Missions

Values

Striving to be a leader in ‘Solutions for All Generations’ by providing creative 

technology, as well as caring for and ensuring that all our stakeholders gain the utmost 

b่n่its	and	r่turns.	W่	will	also	continu่	to	contribut่	to	our	soci่tyห	particularly	in	th่	
i่ld	o้	่ducation.	

1. Committed to offering the best service and providing innovative technology that

caters for a modern, creative and digital lifestyle

2. Committed to developing our team and cultivating a positive working attitude

in order to professionally serve our customers. We also place an emphasis on building 

our knowledge to keep pace with today’s rapid technological advancements so as to 

achieve the best possible results. 

SPVI: Solutions for all generations

S - Service Excellence  : Providing the best service to accommodate our  

 customers’ digital lifestyles 

P - People : Continuing to develop and care for our team in order to 

 move forward together 

V – Value  : Ensuring our customers, staff and stakeholders receive 

 the value they deserve

I - Integration  : Providing integrated product and service propositions, 

which	ar่	b่n่icial	้or	all	

VISION MISSION
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S P V I Public Company Limited’s core business 

is a reseller of Apple products, including computers, 

iOS devices (iPod, iPad, iPhone) and various other  

accessories. Also distributed are other brands  

compatible with Apple products, such as hard drives 

for video storage, portable hard drives, print products, 

and graphic products. SPVI also distributes products  

associated with iOS devices, such as speakers,  

headphones, protective cases, and screen protectors. 

We provide products and services that cater for all 

the needs of our target groups including individuals, 

organizations, as well as educational institutions and 

state enterptrises.

Furthermore, SPVI has expanded its customer 

service by initiating “Smart Bar”, or service centres for 

Apple products as well as operating the only Authorised 

Apple training centre in Thailand. 

Policy and Business Direction
SPVI’s business strategy is focused on  

maintaining sustainable growth by providing integrated 

products and services that add value to both our  

customers and society. We also support a learning culture 

and develop our staff to uphold the following corporate 

values, vision and missions:  

Values
SPVI: Solution for all generations

S - Service Excellence : Providing the best service 

to accommodate our customers’ digital lifestyles 

P - People : Continuing to develop and care for 

our team in order to move forward together 

V – Value : Ensuring our customers, staff and 

stakeholders receive the value they deserve

I - Integration : Providing integrated product and 

s่rvic่	propositionsห	which	ar่	b่n่icial	้or	all	

Vision
Striving to be a leader in ‘Solutions for All  

Generations’ by providing creative technology, as well 

as caring for and ensuring that all our stakeholders  

Business Overview

gain	 th่	 utmost	 b่n่its	 and	 r่turns.	W่	 will	 also	 
continue to contribute to our society, particularly in the 

i่ld	o้	่ducation.		

Missions
1. Committed to offering the best service and

providing innovative technology that caters for a modern, 

creative and digital lifestyle

2. Committed to developing our team and cultivat-

ing a positive working attitude in order to professionally 

serve our customers. We also place an emphasis on 

building our  knowledge to keep pace with today’s rapid 

technological advancements so as to achieve the best 

possible results. 

Business Objectives
Our company aims to lead and improve  

comprehensive aspects of IT education with the  

Apple Education Solution in order to promote  

Creative Learning; emphasis will be placed on Edutivity, 

where students take part in educational activities. Our  

experienced management team, sales team and  

Solution Engineer team are able to approach our target 

groups, which range from students, university professors,  

private enterprises to the general public. SPVI will  

also focus on the importance of leadership in all our  

target groups of all professions, as such market 

channels have growing potential in the context of  

today’s global economy. Furthermore, we aim for this 

focus to be supportive for the spread of 3G network 

across Thailand as well as for Thailand’s growth in  

joining the AEC, which has been sustained through social 

media, via computers, tablets and smartphones.  All our 

target groups on both individual and business levels 

are constantly looking to develop their potential; most 

notably those with professions that rely on technology 

and individuals that use technology creatively through-

out their lives (Creative Life Long Learning). As a result, 

SPVI also intends to expand its customer base to include 

more business groups,  with the use of more diversifeid 

products and solutions such as a Color Management 
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System and a large hard drive system that is able to 

conn่ct		a	busin่ss’	il่	s่rv่rs.	
Additionally SPVI aims to strengthen its sales 

by increasing its sales venues, including new outlets 

of iStudio, iBeat, U•Store and mobi, which are smaller 

stores designed to be more approachable, as well as 

by expanding its after-sales services by opening more 

service centers.

In 2014, SPVI has a total 25 branches, which can 

b่	classii่d	accordinglyู	ิ	iStudio	branch่s	ห	ะ	iShop	
branch, 4 iBeat branches, 9 U•Store branches and 4 

mobi branches. SPVI also has two are Smart Bar centers 

as well as another 23 Apple outlets in IT City.

Company Background & Significant 
changes in the past year 

S	P	V	I	Public	Company	Limit่d (SPVI)  was	้irst	
้orm่d	in 1989 by two experienced dealers of 

Apple products, Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol and Mrs. 

Petcharat  Volyarngosol.	Tog่th่rห	th่y	่stablish่d	
th่ir	 ้irst company under the name SPV Business 

Center Co., Ltd., with a registered capital of 3,000,000 

baht. Their main business objective was to distribute 

Apple computers. Later, in 1994, in order to 

improve their shareholder structure and adapt to 

the growth of their business,  Mr. Trisorn and Mrs. 

Petcharat Volyarngosol established 

a new company in the name of SPV Advance Co., Ltd., 

with a registered capital of 6,000,000 baht.

After experiencing business success and the 

continuous growth of the ‘Apple’ market in Thailand, on 

the 6th of January 2011, Mr. Trisorn and Mrs. Petcharat 

Volyarngosol joined hands with IT CITY Public Company 

Limited to set up SPVI Co., Ltd. with a registered capital 

of 120,000,000 baht. SPV Advance Co., Ltd. then trans-

ferred its assets and employees associated with the 

distribution of Apple products to this new company. As a 

result of this joint venture, SPVI has been able to expand 

its distribution of Apple products to IT City Department 

Stores nationwide.

SPVI has also established a new standard for 

customer service by intiating “Smart Bar”, or service 

centres for Apple products as well as operating the only 

Authorised Apple training centre in Thailand. Addition-

ally, it is also an authorized dealer for other brands that 

are associated with Apple products in order to support 

its customers’ needs.
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SPVI’s Significant Events

Month / Year

January 2011

March 2011

July 2011

October 2011

December 2011

January 2011

February 2012

June 2012

April 2013

December 2013

July 2014

September 2014

October 2014

Nov่mb่r	ั0ะ4	
December 2014

Signiicant Events
The Company was established with a registered capital of 120,000,000 baht

Acquired all assets and employees related to Apple from SPV Advance Co. Ltd.

Acquired 15 branches including 4 iSudios, 1 iShop, 1 iBeat, 7 U•Stores and 2 Smart Bars

Opened Apple corners in IT City

Opened U•Stores at Mahidol University and Dhurakij Pundit University.

Op่n่d	th่	irst	Appl่	corn่r	in	Big	C
Opened iSudio at Central Plaza Grand Rama 9 department store.

Opened U•Store at Burapha University.

Opened Smart Bar at Cental Chaengwattana department store.

Opened iStudio at Gateway Ekamai department store.

Converted to SPVI Public Company Limited 

Changed par value from 10.00 baht to 0.50 baht, thus increasing the number of common shares 

from 120.00 million to 240.00 million

Increased registered capital by another 80 million baht from 120 million baht to 200 million baht 

by issuing an additional 160 million shares, with the allocated par value at 0.50 baht ;

• 50 million shares offered to existing shareholders have already been allocated, resulting in 

the Company paid-up capital to be 290 million shares.

•	 ะ04.ิ0	million	shar่s	o้้่r่d	to	th่	public	้or	th่	irst	tim่
• 5.50 million shares offered to the Company’s directors and employees

Increased paid-up capital to 400 million shares., at par value of 0.50 baht, by issuing 160  

million newly-issued, ordinary shares

Canc่ll่d	Smart	Bar	at	H่ad	O้ic่
Opened iBeat branches at

•  Cental Chiangrai

•  Tesco Lotus Mahachai

Opened mobi branches at

•  Seacon Square

•  The Mall Ramkhamhang

•  The Mall Bangkapi

Closed all 27 conner stores in Big C

Op่n่d	a	mobi	branch	at	Asawann	Shopping	Compl่x	ั	Nongkhai
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Product Characteristics & Services
SPVI is one of the authorized resellers of  

Apple products, of which include  Apple computers, 

iOS devices and Apple accessories. It is also a reseller 

o้	oth่r	Non-Appl่	brands	that	can	b่	associat่d	with	
Apple products in order to accommodate customers’ 

needs. SPVI provides service centers called “Smart 

Bar” as well, which offer after-sales services for all Apple 

products and also operates a training center for Apple 

products that follows Apple’s standard.

Product Characteristics
The Company’s products and services can be 

divided into the following three categories:

(1) Apple Products

SPVI was granted authorization from Apple South 

Asia (Thailand) Limited to be a reseller of Apple products, 

categorized below: 

• Apple Computers; MAC OS (MAC Operating 

System), which consist of the iMac, the Mac Pro, the Mac 

Mini, the MacBook Pro and the MacBook Air.

•  iOS Devices, which consist of the iPod, the iPad 

and the iPhone. Since Apple appointed mobile operators 

to be the Distributor of the iPhone, SPVI will purchase 

iPhones from those Distributor.

• Apple Accessories such as battery chargers, 

headphones, mouse devices, extension cords, Internet 

routers and AppleCare Protection plan. 

Revenues Structure 

Revenue Classiication 

Revenues from Apple Products

• MAC OS (MAC Operating System)

• iOS Devices

• Apple Accessories

Total Revenues from Apple Products 

R่v่nu่s	้rom	Non-Appl่	Products	
• Accessories

• Professional Graphics

• Software 

• Computer 

Total	R่v่nu่s	้rom	Non-Appl่	Products		
Total Revenues from Sales 

Service Income 

Other Income 

Total Revenues

Nature of Business 

846.65

1,380.08

91.78

2,318.50

133.90

29.47

20.35

1.96

185.68

2,504.19

13.55

2.34

2,520.08

640.11

1,315.11

125.79

2,081.01

137.52

44.51

15.25

1.76

199.04

2,280.05

12.22

10.73

2,303.00

587.90

1,004.88

140.77

1,733.55

151.07

40.05

11.14

2.45

204.71

1,938.26

8.11

12.01

1,958.38

   33.60

54.76

3.64

92.00

5.31

1.17

0.81

0.08

7.37

99.37

0.54

0.09

100.00

27.79

57.10

5.46

90.36

5.97

1.93

0.66

0.08

8.64

99.00

0.53

0.47

100.00

30.02

51.31

7.19

88.52

7.71

2.05

0.57

0.13

10.45

98.97

0.41

0.61

100.00

2012 2013 2014

Million baht Million baht Million baht% % %
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(2) Non-Apple Products 

In order to accommodate customers’ needs, 

SPVI was also granted authorization to be a reseller of  

Non-Appl่	productsห		as	cat่goriz่d	b่low;	
• Accessories such as hard drives for video  

storage, external hard disks, headphones, Bluetooth 

devices, iPhone/iPad cases and wireless loudspeakers

• Graphic products including Inkjet Printer  

(Pro Series) from the brand “Epson”, imported paper 

for printing from the Japanese brand  “iPaper”, Digital 

Imaging	and	Graphics	Art	้rom	th่	brand	“X-rit่”	
• Software products such as Adobe and EFI 

วColorproo้	XF	Programศ	

(3) Services 

SPVI was granted authorization to be an Authorized 

Apple Service Provider from Apple South Asia (Thailand) 

Limited. Thus, SPVI is eligible to service all Apple prod-

ucts	 ้or	all	custom่rs	and	 is	qualii่d	 to	purchas่	all	

spare parts directly from Apple. Currently, SPVI has two 

service centers called “Smart Bar”, which are located 

in IT Mall Fortune Town and  Central Chaengwattana 

department store. Moreover, the company has been 

appointed the sole Authorized Apple Training Center in 

Thailand that can provide trainings according to Apple 

standard for both retail and corporate customers.
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1. Risk from depending on major  
distributors

SPVI was appointed by Apple South Asia  

(Thailand) Limited to be a reseller of Apple products 

and to open service centers in order to provide after 

sales services for Apple customers. In 2012, 2013 and 

2014, the company purchased products from Apple in 

the proportion of 73.65%, 75.37% and 67.03% of the 

total products purchased by the company respectively. 

The contract with Apple is a year-to-year contract, which 

could be terminated at any time. If it happens, it will have 

a	 signiicant	 adv่rs่	 impact	 on	 th่	 company’s	 busi-
ness. However, Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol, Mrs. Petcharat  

Volyarngosol and the management team have experi-

ence as an Apple reseller for more than 20 years as well 

as have obtained many awards from Apple. In addition, 

th่	company	has	g่n่rat่d	a	siz่abl่	sal่	igur่	and	
has strictly complied with the terms and conditions of the 

contract.	Th่	manag่m่nt	is	conid่nt	that	th่	company	
will continue to gain credibility and support from Apple. 

2. Risk associate with the product  
obsolescence

Apple products are those with fast-paced techno-

logical changes. Driven by rapid ICT changes, new Apple 

products are developed and launched into the market 

with an increasing speed to meet customers’ demands, 

just like other IT products. Therefore, the company may 

encounter problems with inventory management for the 

outdated or obsolete models, which can not be sold in 

the market.

However, since the management team has a 

long-time experience in the business, it has a good 

understanding of customers’ needs. The company 

has dedicated personnel to implement product man-

agement. They will closely monitor product inventory, 

product selection and submit appropriate amount of 

order to prevent the risk of outdated products. For the 

order of products, product managers will regularly  

conduct surveys on customers’ requirements through  

salespersons and branch managers. Furthermore, the 

company follows new product information, technology 

and other trend updates from Apple and other resellers, 

which help the company to select products that best  

it	 its	 custom่rs’	 d่mands.	Mor่ov่rห	 SPVI	 has	 an	 
่้ici่nt	 inv่ntory	manag่m่nt	 by	 impl่m่nting	 an	
online inventory system to link inventory data from all 

branches. At the end of each day, the company will  

perform a random check on the inventory of each branch 

and compare to the report generated by the company’s 

inventory system. For branches with low inventory  

turnover, the products will be transferred to the other 

branches as well as organize sales promotional activi-

ties to help boost the sales. On the other hand, branches 

with inventory shortage will be able to check inventory of 

other branches real-time. As a result, products are nor-

mally sold before their popularity decline. Besides, when  

Apple launches new products to replace the old models, 

the company will be compensated for price difference 

according to agreed models, conditions and timing. This 

will enable the company to reduce old products’ prices 

in order to be able to compete in the market. 

3. Risk associated with the competition
The rapid growth of Information and Communica-

tion Technology (ICT) industry, particularly smartphone 

and tablet PC, has made the competition among vendors 

such	as	Appl่ห	Samsungห	Nokia	and	HTC	mor่	int่ns่.	
The vendors have to develop and launch new products 

frequently to increase their market shares. However,  

Appl่	has	uniqu่	product	propositions	such	as	Mac	OSX	
for Apple Computer, iOS for smartphones and tablets, 

Cloud System and Retina Display for laptop, which gives 

higher resolution display performance.  In addition, it has 

a wide variety of applications as well as safety system 

with modern design and user-friendliness. All these quali-

ties have made Apple continue to gain popularity among 

consum่rs.	N่v่rth่l่ssห	 th่	company	may	้ac่	risk	
associated with competitors who may become Apple’s 

reseller in Thailand and are authorized to open iStudio, 

iBeat, U•Store or Apple outlets in their retail stores or 

department stores. However, there is a restriction that 

Risk Factors 
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่ach	d่partm่nt	stor่	or	o้ic่	building	or	community	
mall can have only one type of Apple store in the same 

location (except for outlets that sell Apple products 

i.e. in Power Buy or Power Mall). Consequently, to be  

succ่ss้ulห	่ach	r่s่ll่r	has	to	่้ici่ntly	manag่	th่ir	
own distribution channels in order to access a wide range 

of customers as well as providing better quality services.

SPVI’s distribution channels cover mostly prime 

areas of Bangkok including among others, 23 outlets in 

IT City branches. It has set up service centers, which can 

offer full-circle after-sales services for all Apple products 

providing one-stop solutions for customers. While most 

resellers focus more on retail market and keep opening 

more branch network, the company engages in corporate 

and educational markets. The company’s management 

has entered the corporate and educational markets for 

a long time, thus rendering a competitive advantage 

to the company over its competitors, which are not as 

experienced.  Furthermore, the company consistently 

searches for other products and applications to create 

innovative solutions that better support learning and  

education in the digital era. With experienced staff to  

provide technological support for educational market,  

the company has succeeded in implementing  

educational solutions for many schools and universities. 

SPVI will continue to grow its business and maintain its 

leading edge in the corporate and educational markets. 

4. Risk associated with lease agreements
The company currently provides Apple and  

Apple related products and services to retail customers 

through its 25 branches (5 iStudios, 1 iShop, 4 iBeat, 9 

U• Stores and 4 mobi) and 2 service centers. Since they 

ar่	 locat่d	่ith่r	 in	 shopping	mallsห	 o้ic่	buildings	
and universities, the company has to rent and enter into 

either short-term or long- term lease agreements with 

landlords. There are risks that the company might not 

be able to renew the contracts or encounter changes in 

terms of agreements that could resulting in increasing 

costs to the company. As of December 31, 2014, SPVI 

has a branch with a long-term lease agreement, which 

has the remaining contractual term of 16 years. Others 

are short-term contracts, which are usually no longer than 

3 years. However, the management of the company has 

been a good tenant for an average of more than 10 years. 

Therefore, the non-renewal risk remains low.  

5. Risk associated with fraud 
(Operational risk)

The company needs to distribute various  

products to branches. Those products are usually 

valuable, mobile and in demand. There are risks that 

the company may face fraudulent actions in the level 

of operational staff. Therefore, the company has set 

a tight internal control and auditing system. It also 

deploys information technology system to support the  

inventory management. Moreover, the company makes it a  

responsibility of  branch managers to conduct a daily 

random check on products, especially those high-value 

products.	Mor่ov่rห	accounting	o้ic่rs	will	ch่ck	th่	
inventory of each branch once a month. Staff in each 

branch will be obliged to be jointly responsible for 

lost items. The company beliefs that the introduced 

policy measures would limit possible damages within the  

scop่	 that	has	 insigniicant	 impact	on	 th่	company’s	
performance. 

6. Risk from relying on the management 
team who are major shareholders of the 
company 

The company relies on the management team 

who has experiences as Apple reseller and has a good 

relationship with Apple for more than 20 years. There is a 

risk associating with such reliance. However, the fact that 

the management team is also a major shareholder should 

alleviate the risk, as it would be in the management’s  

interest to grow the business. Moreover, the company 

has a policy to encourage a teamwork culture and  

will promote the hiring of more external professional  

individuals to join the team mainly to enhance the  

company’s	 ่้ici่ncy	 and	pot่ntial.	 Furth่rmor่ห	 th่	
company	 cl่arly	 d่in่s	 th่	 division	 o้	 duti่s	 and	
responsibilities to prevent a situation where any single 

party	can	ass่rt	a	total	inlu่nc่.	
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Name of Shareholders

 

1. IT City Public Company Limited

2. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

3. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol

4. Mrs. Pattra Pongpianskul

5. Mr. Peerapat Volyarngosol

6. Ms. Patrinda Volyarngosol

7. Ms. Patchara kiatnuntavimon

8. Mr. Somchai Volyarngosol

9. Mr. Veerasak Volyarngosol 

ะ0.	Mr.	Narathorn	Wongvis่s
11. Other Shareholders

Total

No. of Shares

116,000,000 

33,294,000

25,311,050

  8,389,900

6,359,668

5,979,612

5,850,400

5,379,460

5,353,834

5,050,000

183,032,076

400,000,000

% of shareholding 

29.00

8.32

6.33

2.10

1.59

1.50

1.46

1.35

1.34

1.26

45.76

100.00

Shareholder Structure

Top Ten Major shareholders as of 30 December 2014 include:

Dividend Policy
	 Th่	company’s	divid่nd	policy	is	to	pay	shar่hold่rs	at	l่ast	40	p่rc่nt	o้	its	n่t	proit	a้t่r	tax.	How่v่rห	

the payout ratio may be lower if the company plans to expand its operations. The dividend payment shall not exceed 

th่	r่tain่d	่arnings	in	th่	company’s	inancial	stat่m่nts.



ANNUAL REPORT
091

Management Structure

Board of Directors

Risk Management 

Committee

Executive 

Committee

Managing Director

Audit Committee

Accounting Finance 
&Credit

Engineer& 
Service

Sales Retail 1 Retail 2
Product 
Manage-

ment
Marketing

HR

Training

Administration

Business
Development

Internal Audit

Accounting&

Finance
Operations
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Board of Directors

Name – Last Name 

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse 

2. Mr. Min Intanate

า.	 Mr.	Narathorn	Wongvis่s	
4. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

5. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

6. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate 

7. Mrs. Susama Rativanich

Director

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse 

2. Mr. Min Intanate

า.	 Mr.	Narathorn	Wongvis่s	
4. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

5. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

6. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate 

7. Mrs. Susama Rativanich 

Position

Chairman of the Board and Chairman of Audit Committee

Director

Director

Director

Director

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee 

Board Meeting Attendance

 / Total Meeting 

4/4

4/4

3/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

3/4

Audit Committee Meeting 

Attendance / Total Meeting

4/4

-

-

-

-

4/4

3/4

company’s Secretary 
Mr. Pheerapol Amphan 

Authorized Directors 
Mr.	Narathorn	Wongvis่s	or	Mr.	Min	Intanat่	co-signs	with	่ith่r	Mr.	Trisorn	Volyarngosol	or	Mrs.	P่tcharat	

Volyarngosol	and	th่	company’s	o้icial	s่al	is	app่nd่d.

Director Meeting Attendance for the year 2014  

Authorities and Duties of the Board of Directors 
1. To carry out its duties in compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, the company’s objectives and Ar-

ticles of Association as well as the resolutions of shareholder meetings. It shall carefully act in the company’s best 

interest with integrity and discretion. 

2. To elect an Executive Committee to perform a task, or multiple tasks as assigned by the Board. The Board 

also	has	th่	authority	to	appoint	a	Chi่้	Ex่cutiv่	O้ic่r	and	oth่r	m่mb่rs	o้	various	committ่่s	such	as	th่	
Audit	Committ่่ห	th่	Nomination	and	R่mun่ration	Committ่่.
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3. To determine the company’s direction, policies, business plan and budget as well as supervise the  

Executive Committee or any assigned person to ensure that they act in compliance with the policies set by the Board. 

4. To review and approve the company’s policies, directions, strategies, business plans, annual budget for 

the business, annual expenditure budget and large investment projects that have been proposed by the Executive 

Committee.

5. To monitor the company’s performance according to the business plan and budget

6. To review and approve other important matters related to the company as deemed appropriate, for the 

gr่at่r	b่n่it	o้	th่	company.	How่v่rห	th่	้ ollowing	transactions	can	proc่่d	only	a้t่r	r่c่iving	approvals	้ rom	
a	shar่hold่r	m่่ting.	It	is	้urth่r	stipulat่d	that	i้	th่r่	is	a	transactionห	in	which	a	dir่ctor	or	a	party	has	a	conlict	
of interest, such director or party must refrain from casting a vote on the said transaction.

 (a) Transactions that are legally require a resolution from a shareholders’ meeting

	 วbศ		Transactions	in	which	dir่ctors	may	hav่	a	conlict	o้	int่r่st	and	ar่	r่quir่d	by	th่	law	or	th่	Stock 
  Exchange of Thailand’s regulations to be approved by a shareholders’ meeting

Each of the following transactions can proceed only after receiving consent from a Board of Directors’ meeting 

and	at	l่ast	an	a้irmativ่	vot่	้rom	thr่่–้ourth	o้	shar่hold่rs	who	att่nd	th่	shar่hold่r	m่่tingู	
(a) The sales or transfer of all or a substantial part of the company

(b) The purchase or acquisition of another business or a private company

(c) The entering, amendment or termination of any agreement relating to the lease of all or a substantial part 

 of the company’s business

(d) The assignment for a third party to manage the company’s business or merging with a third party with  

 an aim to share revenues

(e) The amendment in the company’s Memorandum of Association or Articles of Association

(f) The increase, or decrease in capital, bond issuance, mergers or dissolutions of the company

Name-Surname

Mr. Min Intanate

Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

Mr. Pheerapol Amphan 

Position

Executive Chairman

Managing Director

Vice President – Operations

Vice President – Accounting & Finance 

Executive Committee

Authorities and Duties of the Executive Committee 
1. To propose the company’s targets, policies, business plans and strategies, annual budget, to the Board of 

Directors for consideration

2. To monitor business operations of the company to be in accordance with policies, plans and budgets as 

approved by the Board of Directors

3. To consider and approve the company’s normal business transactions under budget or investment approved 

by the Board of Directors. Each transaction must be approved within the given authority approved by the Board of 

Directors

4. To present the company’s organizational structure, number of required human resources and management 

authority for the Board of Directors’ approval
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Name-Surname

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse* 

Mr. Sujin Suwannagate *

Mrs. Susama Rativanich 

Position

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the Audit Committee

5.  To consider and adjust remuneration and bonuses for employees that are ranking below Managing Direc-

tors, including manpower not accounted for in the annual budget

6. To appoint or hire a consultant regarding the administration of the company, in order to achieve highest 

่้ici่ncy
7.		To	consid่r	proit	and	loss	o้	th่	company	and	propos่	both	int่rim	and	annual	divid่nds	้or	th่	Board	

of Directors’ approval

8.  To assign any person(s) to perform a task under the Executive Committee’s supervision or to delegate 

authority to the person(s) and within a period as deemed appropriate by the Executive Committee. The Executive 

Committee may dismiss, withdraw, change or reassign the authorized person(s) or the delegation of authority as it 

s่่s	it.
9. To perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors 

 

 The Executive Committee must not assign its power to a person or a party to perform activities that may have 

a	conlict	o้	int่r่st	with	th่	companyห	subsidiari่s	or	r่lat่d	compani่s	วas	d่in่d	by	announc่m่nts	้rom	th่	
Securities and Exchange Commission and/or the Stock Exchange of Thailand and/or other related agencies). The 

Executive Committee would not have authority to approve such transaction and must propose to a Board of Direc-

tors’ Meeting and/or a shareholders’ meeting (as the case may be) for their consideration and approval. Exceptions 

can	b่	mad่	้or	transactions	that	con้orm	to	normal	cours่s	o้	busin่ss	as	d่in่d	by	th่	SEC	and/or	th่	Stock	
Exchange of Thailand and/or related agencies.

Audit Committee

	R่marksู	ษ	Mr.	T่่ra	Aphaiwongs่	and	Mr.	Sujin	Suwannagat่	ar่	dir่ctors	with	su้ici่nt	knowl่dg่	and	
่xp่ri่nc่	to	r่vi่w	inancial	stat่m่nts

Secretary of the Audit Committee 
Ms. Yupa Benchawikai 

Authorities and Duties of the Audit Committee 
ะ.	To	r่vi่w	th่	company’s	inancial	r่port	and	่nsur่	its	r่liability	and	ad่quacy
2. To review that the company has appropriate and effective internal control and internal audit systems and 

to determine an internal audit unit’s independence as well as to consider the appointment, transfer or dismissal of 

the chief of an internal audit unit or any other positions responsible for the internal audit

3. To review the company’s compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the regulations of the Stock 

Exchange and the laws relating to the company’s business 



ANNUAL REPORT
095

4. To consider, select, nominate and recommend an independent individual to be the company’s auditor and 

to propose the remuneration for the said individual, as well as attend a non-executive meeting with the company’s 

auditor at least once a year

ิ.	To	r่vi่w	conn่ct่d	transactions	and	transactions	that	may	l่ad	to	a	conlict	o้	int่r่st	to	่nsur่	th่y	
conform with all relevant laws and regulations of the Stock Exchange, reasonable and are for the best interest of the 

company

6. To prepare an Audit Committee report and disclose it in the company’s annual report. Such report must be 

signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee and must include at least the following information:

	 วaศ	 An	opinion	on	th่	accuracyห	compl่t่n่ss	and	cr่ditability	o้	th่	company’s	inancial	r่port
 (b)  An opinion on the adequacy of the company’s internal control system

 (c)  An opinion on the compliance with the Securities and Exchange laws and the regulations of the  

  Stock Exchange and any laws pertinent to the company’s businesses

 (d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor

	 ว่ศ		 An	opinion	on	transactions	that	may	l่ad	to	conlict	o้	int่r่st
 (f) The number of Audit Committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each  

  committee member

 (g) Opinions or remarks received by the Audit Committee through the performance of its duties as  

	 	 d่in่d	in	th่	Committ่่’s	chart่r
 (h) Other transactions, which the Audit Committee views appropriate to disclose to the shareholders  

  and general investors, within the scope of duties assigned by the Board of Directors

7. To perform any other tasks assigned by the Board of Directors, with the consent of the Audit Committee

Name-Surname

ะ.		Mr.	Narathorn	Wongvis่s
2.  Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol

3. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol

4.  Mr. Pheerapol Amphan

Position

Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Member of the Risk Management Committee

Member of the Risk Management Committee

Member of the Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Committee

Authorities and Duties of the Risk Management Committee
1. To propose risk management policies in various areas to the Board of Directors for consideration and  

approval

2. To control, oversee and review risk management process in various aspects of the company to ensure that 

there is a proper and acceptable level of risk management and in line with the risk management policy

3. To report the progress of operational development and improvement to reduce the company risk exposure, 

to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement on a quaterly basis

4. Consider and review the suitability of the risk management policy at least once a year or when the  

company’s	risk	้actors	ar่	signiicantly	chang่d.	In	th่	่v่nt	that	th่r่	is	a	chang่	to	th่	risk	manag่m่nt	policyห	
the Committee must propose the Board of Direectors for approval

5. To perform other risk management related tasks assigned by the Board of Directors
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1. To supervise, administer and manage normal 

business operations in the company’s best interest in 

compliance with the company objectives and Articles of 

Association as well as regulations, resolutions, policies, 

plans and budgets approved by the Board of Directors 

Meeting and / or the Shareholders’ Meeting and are 

under the relevant laws and authorities prescribed by 

the Board of Directors

2. To supervise and/or manage daily business 

operations of the company

3. To prepare and present business policies, 

business plans, objectives, operation plans, business 

strategies, annual budgets for business operations, and 

annual expenditure budget and determine management 

authorities, to the Executive Committee and the Board of 

Directors

4. To adopt policies from the Board of Directors in 

order to determine the direction, strategies and business 

goals and set missions for the company’s management 

and operation teams.

5. To supervise, monitor and follow up on the per-

formance of the company’s management and operation 

team as well as provide solutions to problems so that the 

executives and management team can move forward in 

accordance with the set strategic and business plans, 

in accordance with the company’s policies

6. To monitor and evaluate the performance of the 

management and operation teams; to report progress 

their progress to the Executive Committee, the Audit 

Committee and the Board of Directors on a regular basis

Authorities and Duties of the Managing Director

7.		To	issu่	ord่rsห	r่gulationsห	notiications	and	
memorandum of understandings in order to ensure that 

the operations conform with the company’s policies and 

are for the company’s best interest as well as to maintain 

discipline within the organization

8. To determine management plans including 

details of the selection, training, hiring and dismissal 

of employees as well as the rates of wages, salaries, 

commissions, bonuses and welfares for employees, all 

within a framework approved by the Board of Directors;

9. The Managing Director has the power to appoint 

and dismiss employees of the company in positions 

below an executive director

10. The Managing Director has the authority to 

approve expenses for normal business operations such 

as purchasing assets, making important investments 

and authorizing other transactions in the company’s 

best interest. The Managing Director is only authorized 

to approve transactions under normal courses of busi-

ness and according to the budget prescribed in the 

Authority Table, which has been approved by the Board 

of Directors.

Selection of Directors
The company has not set up a nominating com-

mittee to nominate appropriate individuals to be elected 

as director(s) of the company. Thus, the Board of Direc-

tors shall select directors according to the experience, 

knowledge, skills and attributes required by the law 

and propose the selected candidates individually to a 

Name-Surname

1. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

2. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

3. Mr. Pheerapol Amphan 

4. Mrs. Duangnapa Volyarngosol 

5. Mr. Pongsakorn Boonsrimuang

6. Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant

ต�ำแหน่ง

Managing Director 

Vice President – Operations

Vice President – Accounting & Finance

Assistant Vice President – Product Management 

Senior Manager – Engineering and Service 

Senior Manager – Retail 1

Management Team
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shareholders’ meeting for their approval. Attendees of 

the meeting will then elect the company’s directors as 

prescribed in the Articles of Association. 

Composition and Appointment of the 
Directors

The compositions, selection, appointment, dis-

missal and withdrawal of the company’s Directors are 

prescribed in the company’s Articles of Association and 

can be summarized as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of the company will 

includ่	at	 l่ast	ิ	m่mb่rs.	No	้่w่r	 than	hal้	o้	 th่	
directors must reside in Thailand and all members must 

poss่ss	qualiications	pr่scrib่d	by	th่	law
2. Shareholders’ meetings shall elect Directors 

according to the following rules and procedures:

(1) Each shareholder shall be entitled to one vote 

per one share

(2) Each shareholder may cast his/her vote for 

one or more candidates for the Board membership but 

may not differentiate his/her voting rights amongst the 

candidates

วาศ	Nomin่่s	with	th่	larg่st	numb่r	o้	vot่s	shall	
b่	่ l่ct่d	to	ill	th่	availabl่	positions	Board	in	r่sp่c-

tive order. In the event that a number of nominees receive 

an equal votes, resulting in the number of Directors being 

more than is required at such time, the Chairman of the 

meeting shall cast the deciding vote

3. In each annual general shareholders’ meeting, 

one-third of the directors shall vacate their positions. If 

the number of directors cannot be divided equally into 

thirds, the number closest thereto will be applicable. In 

th่	irst	and	s่cond	y่ars	้ ollowing	th่	r่gistration	o้	th่	
company, the directors shall conduct a random draw to 

decide which members are to vacate their positions. In 

subsequent years, the directors who have been in their 

positions longest shall vacate their posts. Directors, 

whos่	t่rm	in	o้ic่	has	thus	่nd่dห	may	b่	r่-่l่ct่d	
as a director by shareholders.  

4.	Any	dir่ctorห	who	wish่s	to	r่sign	้rom	o้ic่ห	
shall submit a letter of resignation to the company. The 

resignation shall be effective on the date of which the 

company receives the letter.

Directors, who wish to resign as above, may notify 

the Registrar of his resignation.

5. In the event that director’s position becomes 

vacant	 ้or	any	r่ason	oth่r	 than	th่	่nd	o้	 th่	o้ic่	
term, the Board of Directors shall, during the next board 

meeting, appoint a person to be a new director, with 

all	th่	n่c่ssary	qualiications	according	to	th่	Public	
Limited Companies Act and / or Securities and Stock 

Exchange Laws. This is not applicable if the remaining 

o้ic่	t่rm	is	l่ss	than	ั	months.	Th่	appoint่d	p่rson	
shall remain a director only for the remaining term of the 

person whom they are replacing. This resolution must 

be approved by at least three-fourth of the number of 

remaining directors. 

6. A shareholders’ meeting may also remove a 

dir่ctor	้ rom	o้ic่	b่้or่	th่	่ nd	o้	t่rmห	but	only	i้	such	
resolution is made with at least three-fourth of eligible 

votes from shareholders who attend the meeting. Such 

voters must hold at least one-half of the total number of 

all shares owned by all eligible shareholders that attend 

that particular meeting.

Compositions and Appointment of 
Independent Director

The Board of Directors shall collectively consider 

th่	qualiications	o้	a	candidat่	to	b่	ill่d	in	a	position	
o้	Ind่p่nd่nt	Dir่ctor	basing	on	th่	qualiications	and	
prohibited attributes prescribed in the Public Limited 

Companies Act, Securities and Stock Exchange Laws, 

Notiications	o้	th่	SEC	and/or	oth่r	r่lat่d	rul่s	and	
regulations. In addition, the Board of Directors shall de-

t่rmin่	candidat่s	with	qualii่d	work	่xp่ri่nc่	and	
suitable skills for the position of Independent Director 

and then propose these candidates to a shareholders’ 

meeting for their consideration and appointment. The 

company has a policy that at least a third of the Board 

of Directors (consisting of at least three people) must be 

an Independent Director. 

Compositions and Appointment of Audit 
Committee

The Board of Directors will appoint at least 3 

members to the Audit Committee and each member 

must be an Independent Director. The Audit Committee 

m่mb่rs	must	poss่ss	th่	qualiications	stipulat่d	by	
th่	S่curiti่s	 and	Exchang่	 lawsห	 notiicationsห	 rul่s	
and/or regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. 

Th่	Board	o้	Dir่ctors	also	่ stablish่s	th่	qualiications	
and the scope of responsibilities of the Audit Committee 

from the previously mentioned rules. Other than being an 

Independent Director, members of the Audit Committee 

shall	also	poss่ss	th่	้ ollowing	additional	qualiicationsู
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Remuneration of Directors and Management Team
Monetary Remuneration

Remuneration of Directors

1. Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse

2. Mr. Min Intanate

า.	 Mr.	Narathorn	Wongvis่s	
4. Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol 

5. Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol 

6. Mr. Sujin Suwannagate

7. Mrs. Susama Rativanich

 Total

Salary

Bonus

Other Welfares

Total

1,800,000

480,000

480,000

-

-

600,000

600,000

3,960,000

6

6

6

10,342,360.00

2,176,270.00

4,516,736.09

17,035,366.09

6

6

6

10,836,531.00

376,100.00

3,628,873.96

14,841,504.96

20,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

15,000

20,000

20,000

135,000

100,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

300,000

1,800,000

480,000

480,000

-

-

600,000

600,000

3,960,000

20,000

20,000

15,000

20,000

20,000

20,000

15,000

130,000

Name-Surname
Remuneration Remuneration

No.	o้	th่	Ex่cutiv่s	
(Person)

No.	o้	th่	Ex่cutiv่s	
(Person)

Remuneration

(Baht)

Remuneration

(Baht)

Year 2013

Year 2013

Year 2014

Year 2014

Meeting 
Allowance

Meeting 
Allowance

Bonus

Remuneration of Management Team
The company paid remuneration of 17.35 million baht and 14.84 million baht to the management team in in 

2013 and 2014 respectively. The remuneration includes salary, bonus and other welfares.

1. A member of the Audit Committee shall not be 

a Director appointed by the Board to make decision on 

any business operations of the company, the company’s 

subsidiari่sห	any	joint	v่ntur่sห	its	subsidiari่sห	a้iliat่s	
or	่ntiti่s	that	may	l่ad	to	a	conlict	o้	int่r่st

2. A member of the Audit Committee shall not be a 

Dir่ctor	o้	a	moth่r	companyห	a	subsidiary	or	an	a้iliat่	
of the same level that is a listed company

3. A member of the Audit Committee should  

poss่ss	su้ici่nt	knowl่dg่	and	่xp่ri่nc่	to	carry	
out the responsibilities that are required by the Audit 

Committee. There must be at least member in the Audit 

Committee with enough knowledgeable and experience 

to	r่vi่w	th่	r่liability	o้	inancial	stat่m่nts.
The positions of the Chairman and the members of 

the Audit Committee shall remain valid until end of their 

responsibility as Directors of the company.

Upon completing their term, the Chairman and the 

members of the Audit Committee can be re-elected into 

the Audit Committee by shareholders.
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Employees 
As at 31 December 2014, the company employs a total of 320 employees (exclusive of 6 executives), which 

can be divided into 309 full time employees and 11 part time employees with the details as follows: 

1. Accounting

2. Finance

3. Marketing

4. Sales

5. Retail 1 , 2

6. Engineering & Service 

7. Product Management

8. Business Development

9.  Human Resource

10. Training 

11. Administration 

12. Internal Audit

 Total

12

10

5

29

182

26

24

6

4

2

6

3

309

-

-

-

-

11

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11

12

10

5

29

193

26

24

6

4

2

6

3

320

Full Time Employee 

(Person) 

Part Time Employee 

(Person) 

ĆĊĄ
วคนศ

Department 

Human Resource Development Policy
The company places great emphasis on the  

training and development of employees and has  

่stablish่d	a	 training	division	 cr่at่d	 sp่ciically	 to	 
instruct employees. This training division has the  

objectives of developing the specialized and technical 

knowledge, skills and experience of employees.  

Stimulating these qualities is vital to the development 

of our employees as it helps them to accomplish their 

assignments effectively as well as support and prepare 

th่m	 towards	 ้ulilling	 th่ir	 own	 car่่r	 goals.	 Th่s่	
process will, in turn, strengthen the operations of the 

company as well.

The company is providing the following trainings 

to employees: 

Training	Cours่	้or	N่w	Employ่่sู	to	pr่par่	
employees for their new job

• Leading an orientation to inform new employees 

about the company;

• Providing sales skills training that covers  

customer service techniques and techniques for creating 

better customer experiences

• Presenting knowledge and demonstrations 

regarding the company’s products and their innovation;

• Providing work-experience in real-life situations

Advanced Training Course: to review knowledge 

the of employees in every position 

• Providing training for the staff operating the 

training division

• Providing training for cashiers

• Providing training for staff making demonstra-

tions

Furthermore, the company also encourages  

employees to take training courses outside the company 

and	also	tak่	c่rtiication	่xams	h่ld	by	brand	own่rs	
such as Apple. This would allow employees to  develop 

th่ir	own	pro้่ssionalห	sp่ciic	skills	and	also	improv่	
the company’s competitiveness.
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Corporate Governance
The company realizes the importance of good  

corporate governance with corporate transparency and 

equitable treatment to all concerned parties. Consequently, 

the company has established a “Good Corporate  

Governance Policy” in writing. The company had  

followed and conformed to the policy since 2013. The 

content of the policy covers 5 chapters as follows: 1) the 

Rights of Shareholders, 2) the Equitable Treatment of  

Shareholders, 3) the Company’s Conduct Towards 

Relevant Stakeholders, 4) Disclosure and Transparency 

and 5) Responsibilities of the Board of Directors. The 

company has already disclosed the content of “Good 

Corporate Governance Policy” in its website: www.spvi.

co.th.

In 2014, the company conformed to the Good 

Corporate Governance Policy, which can be summarized 

as follows:

Chapter 1: The Rights of Shareholders
The company realizes and gives importance to 

various basic rights of the shareholders, such as the 

rights to buy, sell or transfer shares; to obtain relevant 

and adequate information on the company; to partici-

pate and vote in the shareholders’ meetings to elect or 

remove Directors of the company, to appoint the external 

auditor, to make decisions on important issues, such as 

dividend payment, amend the company’s Memorandum 

of Association and Articles of Association and increase 

or decrease capital etc. 

Apart from various basic rights of the shareholders 

mentioned above, the company takes various actions to 

promote and facilitate the exercise of the shareholders’ 

rights, as follows

Before the Meeting

The annual general meeting of shareholders of 

the company took place on 4th April 2014 at the ASIC 

Meeting Room, 34th Floor, SVOA Tower, Rama III Road, 

Bangpongpang, Yannawa, Bangkok. The company sent 

an invitation notice to the shareholders at least 14 days 

prior to the meeting date and also posted the invitation on 

the website www.spvi.co.th so that shareholders would 

have enough time to study the information beforehand.

An invitation notice provided correct, clear and 

adequate information as follows:   

1. Attached 3 proxy forms so that shareholders 

who were unable to attend the meeting might appoint 

any person as their proxies by using one of the three 

proxy forms enclosed with the notice of the meeting. 

2. A copy of previous minutes of meeting.

3. Information of those who had been nominated 

for election as directors. The details included the name, 

age, education, work experiences, training organized 

by the Thailand Institute of Directors (IOD), number of 

companies that each director maintained directorship, 

type of the proposed directorship, directorship  

commencement date.

4. Details of 3 directors who can act as sharehold-

ers’ proxies. All of the proposed directors are independ-

ent directors. A shareholder may appoint one of them as 

a proxy to attend and vote on the shareholder’s behalf.

5. Articles of Association in connection with  

shareholder meeting.

6. Map of the location of the meeting for travelling 

by car or public transportation.

7. Each agenda clearly stated that it was for  

acknowledgement or consideration including facts,  

reasoning and the comments from the Board of Directors.

On the day of the Meeting

The company organized the Annual General 

Meeting of Shareholders at SVOA Tower, Rama III Road, 

using a meeting room with appropriate size that could 

adequately accommodate attendees. The registration 

process began 2 hours in advance of the meeting so 

that staff would get enough time to check documents of 

shareholders presented at the meeting in person and 

a large number of proxies appointed by shareholders. 

For the accuracy and to speed up the registration  

proc่ssห	th่	company	had	pr่par่d	su้ici่nt	o้ic่rs	
and registration desks. Once registration was completed, 

shareholders would receive a ballot to vote on each 

agenda of the meeting.

Before the meeting started, the Secretary of the 

meeting would inform shareholders on how to vote  

according to the Articles of Association. Holders of 

the company’s common shares were entitled to cast 

one vote per one share. The casting of votes would be  

conducted openly. The company used a barcode system 

to count the votes for accuracy and speed. After the  

vote counting on each agenda was completed, the  
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company would display the outcome on a screen to 

inform shareholders by dividing the vote scores into 

approve, disapprove and abstain.

Chairman of the Audit Committee, Audit Commit-

tee, Independent Directors, Board of Directors, Executive 

Chairman and Managing Director of the company all gave 

priority and attended the general meeting to provide 

clariications	or	answ่rs	inquiri่s	้rom	shar่hold่rs	in	
the meeting.

For those shareholders who attended the meeting 

after it started, they could still attend the meeting and 

vote on agendas, which were being considered, or those 

had not been voted.

The shareholder meeting proceeded according to 

th่	sp่cii่d	ag่ndas.	Th่	m่่ting	would	not	consid่r	
additional	ag่ndaวsศ	not	sp่cii่d	in	th่	invitation	notic่.

After the Meeting

The company disclosed resolutions from the 

shareholder meeting with the outcome of votes count 

within the same day through media channels of SET. It 

prepared minutes of the meeting and submitted to SET 

within	ะ4	days	as	sp่cii่d	by	th่	laws.

Chapter 2: The Equitable Treatment of 
Shareholders

The company recognized the importance and 

values the right of every individual shareholder, whether 

executive or non-executive, major or minor shareholders. 

Thus, the company would not engage in any discrimina-

tory act or cause any unfair treatment to shareholders 

under the provisions of the relevant laws. In 2014, the 

company practiced the following procedures:

1. The Shareholder Meeting

• The company delivered all three proxy forms to 

holders of all shares so that shareholders could choose 

th่	้orm	that	b่st	itt่d	th่ir	n่่ds.
• In the case where a shareholder was unable to 

attend the meeting, the company had nominated 3 inde-

pendent directors. A shareholder might appoint one of 

them as a proxy to attend and vote on the shareholder’s 

behalf.

2. The Directors and Executives.
The company had written measures to strictly pre-

vent wrongful use of inside information (Insider Trading) 

according to the following procedures:

•	 D่in่d	a	policy	to	pr่v่nt	wrong้ul	us่	o้	in-

sid่	in้ormation	วInsid่r	Tradingศ	and	notii่d	dir่ctors	
and executives to refrain from perform any transaction on 

the shares, 1 month prior to the publish of the company’s 

inancial	stat่m่nts.	As	้ or	th่	pr่vious	y่arห	th่	Board	
of Directors and Management of the company had strictly 

conformed to the policy. 

• Connected transactions that occurred in the 

year 2014 were all transparent and were carried out in 

a fair manner in accordance with ordinary courses of 

business.

Chapter 3: The Role of stakeholders
The company respected the rights of relevant 

stakeholders and treated them fairly as follows:

• Employees: The company aimed to provide both 

skill development and on-the-job training to employees 

of all levels. It did that on a continuous basis either by 

organizing in-house and outside trainings by respective 

suppliers. 

For	w่l้ar่	&	b่n่itsห	th่	company	้ocus่d	on	
quality of working life for employees and treat employees 

equally. The company provided life and health insur-

ance, provident fund and annual physical check up for 

all employees. The last physical checkup was organized 

on December 18, 2014

• Partners and Creditors: The company adhered 

to good business practice and strictly complied with 

commercial terms and/or agreements with business 

partners and creditors. It maintained the relationship with 

its partners based on the principle of equality and mutual 

b่n่its	in	ord่r	to	d่v่lop	a	long-t่rm	r่lationship	with	
partners.

• Customers: The company strived to achieve 

custom่rs’	satis้action	and	conid่nc่	by	k่่ping	on	
improving products and services as well as maintaining 

good relationships, integrity and fairness.

• Competitors: The company treated competitors 

in accordance with international standard under legal 

frameworks on fair trade competition. It observed the 

rules of fairness when competing and would not acquire 

information from competitors illegally or against its ethics.

• Communities and Society: The company real-

izes its responsibilities towards the communities and 

society. It participated in charitable activities and public 

services, for example, activities to promote education.
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Chapter 4: Disclosure and Transparency
The Board of Directors recognized the importance 

of accurate and transparent disclosure of information, 

both	 inancial	 and	 non-inancialห	 as	 stipulat่d	by	 th่	
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission 

and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. It also disclosed 

oth่r	signiicant	in้ormation	that	might	a้้่ct	th่	pric่	o้	
the company’s securities, and might have an impact on 

investors and stakeholders’ decision. This was carried 

out to ensure that related parties obtain equal information. 

The company disseminated information of the company 

to shareholders, investors and general public through 

various channels provided by the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand and the company’s website: www.spvi.co.th.

The Board of Directors was responsible to review 

and ensure the reliability, completeness and rationality 

o้	th่	company’s	inancial	stat่m่nts.		Th่	company’s	
inancial	stat่m่nts	must	b่	pr่par่d	 in	accordanc่	
with generally accepted accounting principles and use 

appropriate accounting policy with consistency and  

careful judgment. The responsibility of the Board of  

Dir่ctors	 to	 th่	 inancial	 stat่m่nts	 tog่th่r	with	 th่	
report of the auditor must be included in the Annual  

Report Form (56-1) and Annual Report (56-2). The roles of 

the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, number 

of board meetings, and the number of meetings each 

director attended during the past year, must be clearly 

reported. 

The company set up an Investor Relations  

Department to handle information and communication 

with shareholders. Investors and securities analysts  

could reach the company via the following contact 

details: 

Telephone:  0 2559 2901-9

Email:  ir@spvi.co.th

Correspondence: Investor Relations

In addition, investors could also study the com-

pany’s information on the website: www.spvi.co.th.

Chapter 5: Responsibilities of the 
Board of Directors

Although the company had not yet appointed 

Nomination	and	R่mun่ration	Committ่่	to	nominat่ 

th่	 company’s	 dir่ctorsห	 it	 was	 conid่nt	 that	 th่	 
curr่nt	Board	o้	Dir่ctors	 compris่d	highly	qualii่d	
individuals with knowledge, capabilities, skill sets and 

experience. They were well recognized and had a good 

understanding of the roles and responsibilities of the 

Board of Directors.

1. Structure of the Board of Directors

Currently, the company’s Board of Directors  

consisted of 7 members comprising:

a) 2 Executive Directors

bศ	ิ 	Non-Ex่cutiv่	Dir่ctorsห	 including	 among	
oth่rsห	 th่	 Chairman.	 O้	 all	 th่	 Non-Ex่cutiv่	 
directors, there were 3 Independent Directors (The  

number of Independent Directors was more than  

one-third of the total number of directors.)

In addition, the Board of Directors also appointed 

the following committees to assist in overseeing the 

overall operations of the company.

1.1 The Executive Committee: responsible for 

determining business operation directions and strate-

gies to be in accordance with the objectives set by the 

Board of Directors and to facilitate the management and 

operation of the company.

ะ.ั	Th่	Audit	Committู่่	r่sponsibl่	้or	sp่ciic	
duties and proposing issues to the Board of Directors 

for consideration and acknowledgement. The Audit  

Committee had the rights and duties as set out in the 

Scope of Responsibilities of the Audit Committee. At 

least one of the members of the Audit Committee must 

be knowledgeable and experienced enough to review 

th่	r่liability	o้	th่	company’s	inancial	stat่m่nts
The Board of Directors had established a policy 

that a person might not hold the position as the Chair-

man and the Managing Director at the same time. This 

was to clearly segregate duties and responsibilities 

between policy setting & supervision duties and daily 

operation management duties. The Board of Directors 

would be responsible for setting policies and supervis-

ing the performance of the management. Meanwhile, 

the management would be responsible for managing 

the company’s day-to-day business operations to be in 

line with approved policies.

2. Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board 

of Directors 

The company stipulated that the Board of Directors 

complied with “the Code of Best Practices” for directors 

of listed companies under the guidelines of SET. The 

Board must understand and be aware of their roles and 

responsibilities as well as carry out their assignments  

in accordance with relevant laws, the company’s  
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objectives and Articles of Association. They should  

direct the company in accordance with resolutions of the  

shareholders’ meeting with honesty, integrity, while 

seriously taking into consideration the interests of the 

company and shareholders. The Board of Directors 

would act as the policymaker who determined business 

targets, operating plans and budgets of the company 

as well as supervise the management team to operate 

th่	busin่ss	according	to	sp่cii่d	polici่sห	plans	and	
budgets. It should also ensure that the plan be effec-

tiv่ly	and	่ ้ici่ntly	่ x่cut่d	้ or	th่	b่st	b่n่its	o้	th่	 
company and shareholders.

3. Board of Directors’ Meetings

The company had set a policy that the Board of 

Directors would hold a meeting at least once every 3 

months. In addition, a special meeting could be called 

if it was deemed necessary. Agendas would be clearly 

d่in่dห	and	th่	m่่ting	docum่nts	would	b่	s่nt	7	
days	in	advanc่	to	allow	su้ici่nt	tim่	้or	th่	dir่ctors	
to review prior to the meeting. Each meeting would be 

recorded, and minutes of meeting would be prepared in 

writing. All approved documents must be properly stored 

for future reference and inspection. 

4. Remuneration of Directors and Management 

Team

The company had a policy to provide reasonable 

remuneration for the company’s directors and manage-

m่nt	 t่amห	which	 should	b่	 su้ici่nt	 to	 attract	 and	
retain the directors and the management team. The 

r่mun่ration	would	b่	 justii่d	with	 th่ir	 r่sponsibili-
ties and competitive with other companies’ remunera-

tion within the same industry. Factors to be considered 

include experience, duties, roles and responsibilities 

of the directors. Moreover, the remuneration of the  

directors must be approved by the general meet-

ing of shareholders. Meanwhile, remuneration of the  

management team must comply with the principles and 

policies set by the Board of Directors, which was also 

based on obligations, responsibilities and performance 

of each executive as well as the operating results of the 

company.

5. Development of Directors and Management 

Team

The Board of Directors had set a policy to promote 

and support training and education for corporate  

governance to related parties, including directors, Audit 

Committee, management team and corporate secretary. 

This was to encourage and continuously enhance their 

่้ici่ncy	and	่ ้้่ctiv่n่ss.	Th่	company	gav่	priority	
to training courses provided by Thai Institute of Directors 

Association (IOD). 

Controls on the Use of Inside Information
Directors, management and employees were not 

allow่d	to	disclos่	or	tak่	advantag่	o้	conid่ntial	and/
or	 int่rnal	 in้ormation	o้	 th่	company	้or	 th่	b่n่its	
of themselves or any other person, whether directly or 

indirectly.

Directors, management and employees of the 

company as well as their spouses and minor children  

were prohibited from using internal information of the 

company.	Int่rnal	in้ormation	was	d่in่d	as	in้orma-

tion that had or might have an impact on the price of the 

company’s securities and which had not been disclosed 

to the public. Directors, management and employees of 

the company were restricted to use the internal informa-

tion to buy, sell, offer for sale, or persuade others to buy, 

sell or offer for sale the company’s securities, whether 

directly or indirectly before the information was revealed 

to the public. They were also prohibited to do so for their 

own	or	oth่rs’	b่n่itsห	or	to	knowingly	allow	oth่rs	to	
do	so	 ้or	 th่ir	b่n่its.	Thos่	who	violat่	 such	 rul่s	
would be punished according to disciplinary guidelines 

sp่cii่d	by	th่	company.
The company had taken measures to ensure that 

its executives understand and acknowledge their obliga-

tions to report the holding of the company’s securities 

by themselves, their spouses and dependent children. 

This includes the report of any change in the holding of 

such securities to the SEC according to Section 59 of 

Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

Th่	company	notii่d	its	dir่ctorsห	manag่m่nt	
and employees as well as their spouses and dependent 

children to refrain from making any transaction on the 

company’s securities, 1 month prior to the public disclo-

sur่	o้	th่	company’s	inancial	stat่m่nts.
Th่	company	had	duly	notii่d	its	dir่ctorsห	man-

agement team and employees of the above-mentioned 

requirements.
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Risk Management
The company realized that risk management 

is an integral part of the company’s operations and  

appointed a Risk Management Committee in the Board 

o้	Dir่ctors	m่่ting	No.	 ั/ั0ะ4ห	 on	 th่	 ีth	 o้	May	
2014.This Committee would have the responsibility 

to prepare policies, control, supervise and review the  

risk management process. The Risk Management  

Committee would ensure that the company performed  

risk management at an acceptable level. The Committee 

shall	 th่n	 r่port	 th่ir	 indings	 to	 th่	 Board	 o้	 
Directors on a regular basis, for their consideration  

and acknowledgement.

Internal Control
The company places great importance on  

internal control, as it is a vital tool in preventing possible  

damages happened because of wrongful, misconduct  

or fraudulent actions by executives and employees.  

During the Board of Directors meeting no. 1/2015 on  

17th February 2015, the Board of Directors together  

the Audit Committee, reviewed and evaluated the 

internal control systems according to evaluation  

guidelines recommended by the Capital Market  

Sup่rvisory	 Board.	 Th่r่	w่r่	 iv่	 ้ollowing	 ar่asู	 
Control Environment, Risk Evaluation, Control Activities, 

Information Technology and Communication and  

Monitoring and Assessment.It is in the opinion of the 

Board that the company has an adequate and effective 

int่rnal	 control	 syst่m.	 It	 did	 not	 ind	 any	 signiicant	 
laws	r่garding	th่	company’s	int่rnal	control	syst่m.

Mor่ov่rห	EY	O้ic่	Limit่dห	th่	่ xt่rnal	auditors	
o้	th่	company’s	inancial	stat่m่nts	้ or	th่	iscal	y่ar	o้	
ั0ะ4ห	้ ound	no	signiicant	d่ici่nci่s	on	th่	company’s	
internal control systems with regards to the company’s 

inancial	and	accounting	syst่ms.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Internal Audit
The company has designated an internal audit 

department as an independent entity of the company 

reporting to the Audit Committee. This department is re-

sponsible for providing administrative recommendations 

to the managing director. It advises, audits and assesses 

the internal control system, the risk management system 

and oversees operations to ensure that the company has 

an	่้ici่nt	int่rnal	control	syst่m.

Anti-Corruption Policy
The company is committed to conducting its busi-

ness with honesty, integrity, transparency, equitable 

and responsibility for society and all the company’s 

stakeholders according to the principle of good govern-

ance. The company realizes that bribery or corruption is 

threatening to destroy free and fair trade practice and is 

causing damage to economic and social development. 

The company has established policies and guidelines  

to prevent corruption. Details have been disclosed on  

our website: www.spvi.co.th
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The company places a great emphasis on operating under an ethical corporate governance and being fully 

aware of its social responsibility towards people both inside and outside the company, which would lead to the 

development of a sustainable business. We would take into consideration the interest of all stakeholders both inside 

and outside the company, stockholders, employees, customers and those in general society, among others. 

In 2014, the company  has provided it’s continual support for multiple educational projects, including projects 

for university instructors, educational  staff, students  and youths such as:

• Summer training camp for youths in Eastern Thailand, where . in cooperation with Burapha University, youths 

are given the opportunity to experience new technology by using the iPad as a  learning tool

• The creation of  learning and teaching material for the 21st century; for example the Digital Text Book  

Creation by Using “ iBook Author ” is an activity organized in conjunction with Mahidol University, aiming to inform 

educational  staff  on how to create  learning and teaching materials and digital books

• The operation of Online Courses: Online Course by Using “ iTunes U Course Manager ”; this is an activity 

organized in conjunction with Mahidol University, with the purpose of informing educational  staff  on how to create 

online courses

•	 Providing	 training	 s่ssions	 on	 th่	Mac	OS	X	 op่rating	 and	 how	 to	 cr่at่	 digital	m่dia	 using	 iLi้่	 
Applications.	This	activity	is	organiz่d	in	conjunction	with	th่	Thai-Nichi	Institut่	o้	T่chnology.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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A list of related parties with nature of relationship  

and related transactions together with pricing policy was 

disclos่d	 in	 th่	Not่s	 to	 th่	Annual	Financial	Stat่m่nts	
ended 31st December 2014. It was listed under Item 6 of 

th่	Not่sู	 “List	o้	R่lat่d	Parti่s	and	Transactions”.	Th่	
company set up the following policy measures with regards 

to related transactions:

 The Need and Reasonableness of the  
Related Transactions

The Audit Committee of the company reviewed  

information about related transactions and acknowledged 

that the transactions were necessary and reasonable. They 

were transacted for the best interest of the company and in 

line with normal courses of business.

 The Related-Transaction Approving Process 
The company set up policy measures to govern any 

transaction	with	an	่ntity	that	might	hav่	conlict	o้	int่r่st.	 
It had assigned the Audit Committee to review and give 

opinions	 r่garding	 th่	n่c่ssityห	 justiication	and	pricing	 
appropriateness of the transactions. The Audit Committee 

would judge if conditions associated with the transactions 

were in line with normal courses of business and  

competitive with market prices and offers from other  

independent suppliers. In the event that the Audit  

Committ่่	did	 not	 hav่	 sp่ciic	 ่xp่rtis่	 to	 consid่r	 a	
related transaction, the company would engage an advisor 

with relevant knowledge to comment on such transactions. 

The advisor must be independent from the company or 

thos่	who	might	hav่	conlict	o้	int่r่sts	with	th่	company.	
Independent advisors might include, for instance, auditors, 

apprais่rs	or	l่gal	o้ic่rs.	Th่	Audit	Committ่่	might	r่ly	on	
advice given by independent advisors when considering the  

appropriateness of a related transaction before proposing 

to the Board of Directors or the Shareholders’ Meeting, as 

the case may be.

In addition, the company had stipulated that an 

executive or any person be refrained from participating in 

the approval process of any transaction he or she might 

hav่	conlicts	 o้	 int่r่stห	 ่ith่r	 dir่ctly	 or	 indir่ctly.	 Th่	
Board of Directors would ensure that the company comply 

with securities and exchanges laws and regulations as well 

as	announc่m่nts	and	notiications	issu่d	by	th่	SEC	and	
SET. It had to also ascertain that the company complied  

Related Transactions

with requirements on the disclosure of related transactions, 

acquisition or disposal of important assets of the company 

or its subsidiaries. Furthermore, the Board would oversee 

that the company applied generally accepted accounting 

principles as stipulated by the Federation of Accounting 

Pro้่ssions	and	C่rtii่d	Public	Accountant	 o้	 Thailand.	
Related transactions would be disclosed in the notes to 

inancial	stat่m่ntsห	audit่d	or	r่vi่w่d	by	th่	auditors	o้	
the company.

 Related Transactions in the Future
The company might continue to have related  

transactions in the future, that were in line with normal courses 

of business. It would set a clear policy on related transactions 

particularly on pricing and conditions, which have to be in 

line with normal courses of business and competitive with 

offers from other independent suppliers. Related transactions 

might cover, for example, selling and buying of products, 

rendering or providing services etc. Related transactions 

would be carried out if they were required to support the  

business operation and for the best interest of the company. 

The Audit Committee would monitor whether related  

transactions complied with the set policy measures and 

give opinions on the reasonableness of the transactions on 

a quarterly basis. 

For any possible related transactions that were 

not in accordance with ordinary courses of business, the  

company would arrange for the Audit Committee to  

review and give comments on the appropriateness of the  

transactions before the company entered into the  

transactions. The consideration would be made in  

accordance with the measures and procedures as  

sp่cii่d	 abov่.	 For	 any	 possibl่	 r่lat่d	 transactions	
that	might	hav่	conlicts	o้	int่r่stห	th่	Board	o้	Dir่ctors	
would ensure that the company comply with securities  

and exchanges laws and regulations as well as  

announc่m่nts	and	notiications	 issu่d	by	 th่	SEC	and	
SET. It had to also ascertain that the company complied with 

requirements on the disclosure of related transactions, acqui-

sition or disposal of important assets of the company or its 

subsidiaries. Furthermore, the Board would oversee that the 

company applied generally accepted accounting principles 

as stipulated by the Federation of Accounting Professions 

and	C่rtii่d	Public	Accountant	o้	Thailand.



ANNUAL REPORT
107

List of Directors and Controlling Persons in 
the Company 

Name

Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse

Mr. Min Intanate 

Mr.	Narathorn	Wongvis่s
Mr. Trisorn Volyarngosol

Mrs. Petcharat Volyarngosol

Mr. Sujin Suwannagate

Mrs. Susama Rativanich 

Mr. Pheerapol Amphan

Mrs. Duangnapa Volyarngosol 

Mr. Pongsakorn Boonsrimuang

Mr. Pairoj Ulisnant 

XหAC
/,C

/

/,//,///

/,//,*

/,AC

/,AC

//,*

**

***

***

Related Company

1   2   3   4   5   6   7   8   9  10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

/

/

/

/

/

/

/ / / / / / // / / / //,//// / / / /

x /

x/,C /,C /,C

Not่	
X	เ	Chairman	o้	th่	Board	 C	เ	Ex่cutiv่	Chairman	 AC	เ	Audit	Committ่่
/	เ	Dir่ctor	 //	เ	Ex่cutiv่	Committ่่	 ///	เ	Managing	Dir่ctor
ษ	เ	Vic่	Pr่sid่nt	 ษษ	เ	Assistant	Vic่	Pr่sid่nt	 ษษษ	เ	S่nior	Manag่r

Related Company :

1. S P V Digital Service Co., Ltd.

2. S P V Advance Corporation Limited

3. Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.

4. Core and Peak Co., Ltd.

5. D2 Systems Co., Ltd.

6. D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

7. Siam City Leasing And Factoring Public Company 

 Limited

8. Business Online Public Company Limited

9. Probusiness Development Co., Ltd.

10. Pro Multi Service Co., Ltd.

11. Pro Management Solution Co., Ltd.

12. PCC International Co., Co., Ltd.

ะา.	Pan	Paciic	Consultant	Co.ห	Ltd.

14. Master Link Co., Ltd. 

15. Master Vision Co., Ltd.

ะี.	V่ntur่	Proil่	Co.ห	Ltd.
ะ7.	ACONSULTANT	Co.ห	Ltd.
ะื.	ANEW	Corporation	Ltd.
ะุ.	ANET	Co.ห	Ltd.
20. ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.

ัะ.	S.P.N.	Ent่rpris่s	Co.ห	Ltd.
22. SVOA Public Company Limited

23. AR Elastomer Co., Ltd.

24. A.R. Accounting Consultant Co., Ltd.

25. ARIT Co., Ltd.

26. ARIP Public Company Limited

27. IT City Public Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Results of Operations

Results of operations

Total revenues were Baht 1,958.38 million in 2014, a 14.96 percent decrease from Baht 2,303.00 million in 

2013. Revenues from sales of goods and the rendering of services included other income were 98.97 percent, 0.41 

percent and 0.61 percent respectively.

Revenues from sales of goods were categorized into revenue from sales of Apple products and revenue from 

sales of goods under other brands. Revenue from sales of Apple products was Baht 2,081.01 million in 2013 and 

Baht 1,733.55 million in 2014, which is a 16.70 percent or Baht 347.46 million decrease. This decrease was mainly 

due to decreasing in revenue from the sales of IOS Products and revenue from corporate customer. In addition the 

launch of Apple’s new model was delayed in 2014, the sales volume was affected.

Revenues from the rendering of services was Baht 8.11 million in 2014, a 33.63 percent or Baht 4.11 million 

decrease from Baht 12.22 million in 2013.

In 2014, company was increase the proportion of the sales of goods under other brands such as computer 

and accessories. Revenue from sales of goods under other brands was Baht 204.71 million in 2014, a 2.85 percent 

or Baht 5.67 million increases from Baht 199.04 million in 2013.

Our	n่t	proit	a้t่r	 incom่	tax	in	ั0ะ4	was	Baht	ะิ.7ั	millionห	Baht	0.ิ4	million	d่cr่as่	้rom	Baht	ะี.ัี	 
million	in	ั0ะา.	Company	has	manag่d	to	maintain	th่	proitability	in	th่	y่ar	ั0ะ4.	N่t	proit	ratio	was	0.ืะ	p่rc่nt	
in 2014 which was approximate to 0.71 percent in 2013. This was mainly due to the cost control with no effect to the 

sales and customer services.
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Financial status

Assets: at December 31, 2014, company reported the total asset of Baht 429.29 million, an increase of Baht 

7.17 million or a 1.71 percent from Baht 419.12 million at the end of 2013. Baht 77.91 million net cash increase in cash 

and	cash	่quival่nts	was	primarily	th่	r่sult	o้	้rom	th่	incr่as่	in	cash	lows	้rom	op่rating	activiti่s	Baht	ุ4.ีะ	
million, Baht 89.45 million from the decrease of accounts receivable and other receivable because the proportion 

o้	trad่s	in	ั0ะ4	w่r่	in	cash	mor่	than	cr่dit	in	compar่	to	ั0ะา.	Cash	low	paid	้or	inv่sting	activiti่s	was	Baht	
10.17 million, due primarily to cash invested in the new branch and renovated some branches and from purchasing 

of computer systems and decorations, totaling Baht 10.17 million. Dividend payment was Baht 6.53 million.

Liabilities: at December 31, 2014, company reported the total liabilities of Baht 147.23 million, a decrease of Baht 

2.02 million or a 1.35 percent from Baht 149.25 million at the end of 2013. Liabilities in 2014, mainly contributed by 

current liabilities from business process which was Baht 140.84 million or a 95.66 percent of total liabilities, consisted 

of Baht 138.73 million from account payable and other payable, and Baht 2.11 million from other current liabilities and 

accrued expenses.

Shareholders’ equity: Company has Baht 200 million registered capital via issuance of ordinary shares totaling 

400 million shares at par value of Baht 0.50 per share, fully paid-up. At December 31, 2014, company reported the 

total shareholders’ equity of Baht 279.07, an increase of Baht 9.20 or a 3.41 percent from Baht 269.87 million in 2013.  

Book value was Baht 0.70 per share. Company has no capital increase in 2014.

Debt to Equity ratio: Debt to Equity ratio decreased from 0.55 time in 2013 to 0.53 time in 2014, mainly  

contributed by a decrease of total liabilities.
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Th่	Board	o้	Dir่ctors	is	r่sponsibl่	้or	S	P	V	I	Public	Company	Limit่d’s	inancial	stat่m่ntsห	including	
th่	 inancial	 in้ormation	pr่s่nt่d	 in	 this	annual	 r่port.	 Th่	a้or่m่ntion่d	 inancial	 stat่m่nts	ar่	pr่par่d	
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, using careful judgment and the best estimations.  

Important	in้ormation	is	ad่quat่ly	and	transpar่ntly	disclos่d	in	th่	not่s	to	inancial	stat่m่nts	้ or	th่	Company’s	
shareholders and investors.

 

Th่	Board	o้	Dir่ctors	has	provid่d	and	maintain่d	a	risk	manag่m่nt	syst่m	and	appropriat่	and	่ ้ici่nt	
internal controls to ensure that accounting records are accurate, reliable and adequate to protect its assets and 

uncover any weaknesses that may be presented in order to prevent fraud or materially irregular operations. 

The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee to be responsible for reviewing the accounting 

policyห	inancial	r่portsห	int่rnal	controlsห	int่rnal	audit	and	risk	manag่m่nt	syst่m.	Th่	Audit	Committ่่	has	also	
reviewed a disclosure of related party transactions. All their comments on these issues have been included in the 

Audit Committee Report which is presented in this annual report. 

Th่	 inancial	 stat่m่nts	 o้	 th่	 Company	 hav่	 b่่n	 ่xamin่d	 by	 an	 ่xt่rnal	 auditorห	 EY	 O้ic่ 

Limited. To conduct the audits and express an opinion in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards, the auditor was provided with all of the Company’s records and related data as requested. The auditor’s 

opinion is presented in the auditor’s report as part of this annual report.

The Board of Directors believes that the Company’s overall internal control system has functioned up to a 

satis้actory	l่v่l	and	r่nd่r่d	cr่dibility	and	r่liability	to	S	P	V	I	Public	Company	Limit่d’s	inancial	stat่m่nts	
้or	th่	y่ar	่nd่d	าะ	D่c่mb่r	ั0ะ4.	Th่	Board	o้	Dir่ctors	also	b่li่v่s	that	all	th่s่	inancial	stat่m่nts	hav่	
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and related regulations. 

Board of Directors’ responsibility 
for financial reporting 

 Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse

Chairman of the Board

Mr. Min Intanate

 Executive Chairman
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To the Shareholders ;

The Audit Committee of S P V I Public Company 

Limited is appointed by the Board of Directors, consists 

of three independent board members, whose knowl-

่dg่	and	qualiications	ar่	compli่d	with	th่	dir่ctiv่	 
issu่d	by	Th่	O้ic่	o้	Th่	S่curiti่s	and	Exchang่	
Commission. The current members of committee are:

- Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse; Chairman of the Audit 

Committee

- Mr. Sujin Suwannagate; Member of the Audit 

Committee

- Mrs. Susama Rativanich; Member of the Audit 

Committee

Ms. Yupa Benchawikai; Manager of the Internal 

Audit Department, serves as secretary of the Audit 

Committee

The Audit Committee performed the duty as  

assigned by the Board of Directors, in compliance with 

the charter of auditing. 

In 2014, the Audit Committee held 4 meetings 

with the management, internal auditors, and external  

auditors. The Committee reported its activities to the 

Board of Directors on a quarterly basis as summarized 

below.

To Review Financial Statements: The Committee 

r่vi่w่d	quart่rly	and	annual	inancial	r่portห	tog่th่r	
with information disclosure and accounting policies, with 

the management and the external auditors, including the 

notes and suggestion by the auditors stated in the report 

submitted to the Board of Directors and Shareholders, 

The Committee assessed the adequacy and reliability of 

information disclosure and external auditor’s discretion 

and	d่t่rmin่d	that	th่	company	inancial	stat่m่nts	
and reports had complied with accounting standard 

requirements under generally accepted accounting 

principles.

To Review Internal Control System: The Committee 

reviewed the Company’s internal audit plan and reports 

to	ass่ss	th่	su้ici่ncy	and	่ ้ici่ncy	o้	int่rnal	control	
system and found that the internal control system was 

su้ici่ntห	appropriat่	and	่้้่ctiv่	้or	th่	Company’s	

Report of the Audit Committee

business. The Committee provided recommendations 

้or	continuous	improv่m่nt	in	th่	่้ici่ncy	o้	int่rnal 
control system and adherence to the rules and  

regulations set forth by the Company.

To Review Related Transaction: The Committee 

reviewed the related transactions that might cause a 

conlict	o้	int่r่st	to	่nsur่	that	th่y	con้orm	with	th่	
normal business practices and there were no items that 

will	hav่	a	signiicant	impact	on	th่	Companyห	bas่d	on	
the accepted principles of transparency, including the 

su้ici่nt	disclosur่	o้	thos่	transactions	in	complianc่	
with the requirement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

and Company’s guideline.

To Review Corporate Governance: The Committee 

reviewed the Company’s adherence to Good Corporate 

Governance principle, to ensure that the internal control 

system is effective, adequate, and appropriate to the 

changing business environment.

Appointment of External Auditor: The Committee 

proposed the appointment and remuneration of the 

Auditors, based on their knowledge’s, experiences and 

integrity, to the Board of Directors, for shareholders’  

approval at the Annual General Meeting.

In summary, the Audit Committee performed 

its	duti่s	 as	 sp่cii่d	 in	 th่	Board-approv่d	chart่r	
with	prud่nc่	and	ind่p่nd่nc่ห	and	conirm่d	that	
the Board of Director and Executives of company are  

committed to achieve company goals with the highest 

quality of work, emphasizing the important of operating 

under the effective internal control system, with good 

corporate governance and transparency in accordance 

to the guideline of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

 Mr. Teera Aphaiwongse

Chairman of Audit Committee
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To the Shareholders of S P V I Public 
Company Limited

I	 hav่	 audit่d	 th่	 accompanying	 inancial	 
statements of S P V I Public Company Limited, which 

compris่	 th่	 stat่m่nts	 o้	 inancial	 position	 as	 at	
31 December 2014, and the related statements of  

comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity 

and	cash	lows	้or	th่	y่ar	th่n	่nd่dห	and	a	summary	
o้	signiicant	accounting	polici่s	and	oth่r	่xplanatory	
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation 

and	 ้air	 pr่s่ntation	 o้	 th่s่	 inancial	 stat่m่nts	 in	 
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, 

and for such internal control as management  

determines is necessary to enable the preparation  

o้	 inancial	 stat่m่nts	 that	 ar่	 ้r่่	 ้rom	mat่rial	 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

inancial	 stat่m่nts	bas่d	on	my	audit.	 I	 conduct่d 

my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on  

Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit  

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  

inancial	stat่m่nts	ar่	้ r่่	้ rom	mat่rial	misstat่m่nt.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

inancial	stat่m่nts.	Th่	proc่dur่s	s่l่ct่d	d่p่nd	
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 

o้	 th่	 risks	 o้	mat่rial	misstat่m่nt	 o้	 th่	 inancial	 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk  

assessments, the auditor considers internal control  

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 

Independent Auditor’s Report

o้	 th่	 inancial	 stat่m่nts	 in	 ord่r	 to	 d่sign	 audit	 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit  

also includes evaluating the appropriateness of  

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by management, as well 

as	่valuating	 th่	ov่rall	 pr่s่ntation	 o้	 th่	 inancial	
statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained 

is	su้ici่nt	and	appropriat่	to	provid่	a	basis	้or	my	
audit opinion. 

Opinion
In	my	opinionห	 th่	 inancial	 stat่m่nts	 r่้่rr่d	

to above present fairly, in all material respects, the  

inancial	position	o้	S	P	V	I	Public	Company	Limit่d	as	 
at	าะ	D่c่mb่r	ั0ะ4ห	and	th่ir	inancial	p่r้ormanc่	
and	cash	lows	้or	th่	y่ar	th่n	่nd่dห	in	accordanc่	
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Wichart Lokatekrawee

C่rtii่d	Public	Accountant	วThailandศ	No.	44ิะ
EY	O้ic่	Limit่d

Bangkok: 17 February 2015
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S P V I Public Company Limited
Statement of financial position 
As at 31 December 2014

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Current investments

Trade and other receivables

Inventories 

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits

Equipments

Intangible asset - computer software

Leasehold right

Other non-current assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

22

 127,986,630 

 2,039,600 

 33,087,445 

 186,509,116 

 12,666,452 

 362,289,243 

 160,000 

 33,336,511 

 6,980,291 

 7,595,086 

 12,539,944 

 3,392,904 

 64,004,736 

 426,293,979 

 50,084,434 

 2,000,000 

 122,577,787 

 156,844,986 

 18,678,850 

 350,186,057 

 160,000 

 39,638,191 

 8,097,945 

 8,052,675 

 9,302,324 

 3,685,426 

 68,936,561 

 419,122,618 

Note 2014 2013

(Unit: Baht)

Th่	accompanying	not่s	ar่	an	int่gral	part	o้	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts.	 	 	 	
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S P V I Public Company Limited
Statement of financial position (continued) 
As at 31 December 2014

(Unit: Baht)

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Income tax payable

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Provision	้or	long-t่rm	่mploy่่	b่n่its
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

   Registered

   400,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each

   Issued and fully paid up

   400,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each

Share premium

Retained earnings

   Appropriated - statutory reserve

   Unappropriated

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

16

17

18

19

 138,729,769 

 1,545,406 

 565,213 

 140,840,388 

 6,388,248 

 6,388,248 

 147,228,636 

 200,000,000 

 200,000,000 

 39,809,592 

 10,074,503 

 29,181,248 

 279,065,343 

 426,293,979 

 141,477,877 

 - 

 2,080,516 

 143,558,393 

 5,695,444 

 5,695,444 

 149,253,837 

 200,000,000 

 200,000,000 

 39,809,592 

 9,288,685 

 20,770,504 

 269,868,781 

 419,122,618 

Note 2014 2013

Th่	accompanying	not่s	ar่	an	int่gral	part	o้	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts.	 	



ANNUAL REPORT
115

Proit or loss 
Revenues 

Sales 

Service income 

Other income 

Total revenues 

Expenses 

Cost of sales  

Cost of services 

Selling expenses 

Administrative expenses 

Total expenses 

Proit before inance cost and income tax expenses 

Finance cost 

Proit	b่้or่	incom่	tax	่xp่ns่s	
Income tax expenses 

Proit for the year 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic earnings per share 

Proit
 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares)

20

22

23

 1,938,264,880 

 8,107,966 

 12,008,435 

 1,958,381,281 

 1,739,563,012 

 5,143,467 

 111,213,169 

 79,029,815 

 1,934,949,463 

 23,431,818 

 (3,433,885)

 19,997,933 

 (4,281,588)

 15,716,345 

 - 

 15,716,345 

0.04

400,000,000

 2,280,049,642 

 12,216,930 

 10,731,031 

 2,302,997,603 

 2,075,062,052 

 6,554,777 

 116,401,192 

 79,476,612 

 2,277,494,633 

 25,502,970 

 (4,866,302)

 20,636,668 

 (4,379,813)

 16,256,855 

 - 

 16,256,855 

0.06

278,520,548

Th่	accompanying	not่s	ar่	an	int่gral	part	o้	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts.	 	 	 	

S P V I Public Company Limited
Statement of comprehensive income 
For the year ended 31 December 2014 

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2014 2013
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Cash lows from operating activities  

Proit	b่้or่	tax	 	
Adjustm่nts	to	r่concil่	proit	b่้or่	tax	to		 	
   net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities: 

   Depreciation and amortisation  

  Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts 

   Increase (decrease) in reduction of inventory to   

       net realisable value  

   Loss (gain) on disposals of equipment  

   Loss on write-off of equipment  

			Provision	้or	long-t่rm	่mploy่่	b่n่its	
   Unrealised gain on exchange  

   Interest income  

   Interest expenses  

Proit	้rom	op่rating	activiti่s	b่้or่			 	
   changes in operating assets and liabilities  

Operating assets (increase) decrease:  

   Trade and other receivables  

   Inventories  

   Other current assets  

   Other non-current assets  

Operating liabilities increase (decrease):  

   Trade and other payables  

   Other current liabilities  

Cash	lows	้rom	วus่d	inศ	op่rating	activiti่s	
Cash received from interest income  

Cash paid for income tax  

Net cash lows from (used in) operating activities 
 

 19,997,933 

 16,531,865 

 (28,548)

 

(2,126,864)

 570,877 

 906,164 

 692,804 

 - 

 (876,211)

 13,685 

 35,681,705 

 89,451,521 

 (27,537,266)

 6,012,398 

 (3,237,620)

 (2,748,108)

 (1,515,303)

 96,107,327 

 943,580 

 (2,443,660)

 94,607,247 

 20,636,668 

 13,995,814 

 354,833 

 5,139,217 

 (206,353)

 5,445 

 641,309 

 (51,936)

 (845,778)

 2,105,198 

 41,774,417 

 (644,903)

 22,083,930 

 10,619,115 

 (292,289)

 (149,642,038)

 1,455,428 

 (74,646,340)

 726,578 

 (11,085,915)

 (85,005,677)

2014 2013

Th่	accompanying	not่s	ar่	an	int่gral	part	o้	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts.	 	 	 	

S P V I Public Company Limited
Cash flow statement 
For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Unit: Baht)
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Cash lows from investing activities   

Increase in current investments  

Proceeds from disposals of equipment  

Acquisitions of equipment  

Increase in intangible assets  

Net cash lows used in investing activities  
Cash lows from inancing activities  
Cash paid for interest expenses  

Cash received from issuance of ordinary shares   

Dividend paid  

N่t	cash	lows	้rom	วus่d	inศ	inancing	activiti่s	
N่t	 incr่as่	 วd่cr่as่ศ	 in	 cash	 and	cash	 ่quival่nts 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year   

-39,600

 647,545 

 (9,977,490)

 (802,038)

 (10,171,583)

 (13,685)

 - 

 (6,519,783)

 (6,533,468)

 77,902,196 

 50,084,434 

 127,986,630 

-2,000,000

 1,492,285 

 (13,452,085)

 (6,665,708)

 (20,625,508)

 (2,105,198)

 118,761,990 

 (88,000,000)

 28,656,792 

 (76,974,393)

 127,058,827 

 50,084,434 

2014 2013

Th่	accompanying	not่s	ar่	an	int่gral	part	o้	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts.	 	 	 	

S P V I Public Company Limited
Cash flow statement (continued) 
For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Unit: Baht)
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Balance as at 31 December 2012

Share capital issued

Dividend paid

Unappropriated retained earnings

   transferred to statutory reserve

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2013

Balance as at 31 December 2013

Dividend paid

Unappropriated retained earnings

   transferred to statutory reserve

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2014

18

26

19

26

19

 120,000,000 

 80,000,000 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 200,000,000 

 200,000,000 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 200,000,000 

 - 

 39,809,592 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 39,809,592 

 39,809,592 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 39,809,592 

 3,685,775 

 - 

 - 

 5,602,910 

 - 

 9,288,685 

 9,288,685 

 - 

 785,818 

 - 

 10,074,503 

 98,116,559 

 - 

 (88,000,000)

 (5,602,910)

 16,256,855 

 20,770,504 

 20,770,504 

 (6,519,783)

 (785,818)

 15,716,345 

 29,181,248 

 221,802,334 

 119,809,592 

 (88,000,000)

 - 

 16,256,855 

 269,868,781 

 269,868,781 

 (6,519,783)

 - 

 15,716,345 

 279,065,343 

Not่
Issued and

 paid up

share capital

Share

premium Appropriated
Unappropri-

ated

         Retained earnings 

Total

Th่	accompanying	not่s	ar่	an	int่gral	part	o้	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts.

S P V I Public Company Limited
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity   
For the year ended 31 December 2014 

(Unit: Baht)
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1. General information

S P V I Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a limited company incorporated under Thai laws on 6 

January 2011 and registered the change of its status to a public limited company under the Public Limited com-

panies Act on 10 April 2013 and domiciled in Thailand. Its major shareholder is IT City Public Company Limited, a 

company incorporated in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the distribution of computers and related  

acc่ssori่s.	Its	r่gist่r่d	addr่ss	is	No.	ะัะา/ิื-ิุ	Soi	Ladprao	ุ4	Sriwara	Roadห	Phlapphlaห	Wangthonglangห	
Bangkok.

2. Basis of preparation

Th่	 inancial	 stat่m่nts	 hav่	 b่่n	 pr่par่d	 in	 accordanc่	with	 Thai	 Financial	 R่porting	 Standards	 
enunciated under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with 

th่	stipulations	o้	th่	Notiication	o้	th่	D่partm่nt	o้	Busin่ss	D่v่lopm่nt	dat่d	ัื	S่pt่mb่r	ั0ะะห	issu่d	
under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

Th่	inancial	stat่m่nts	in	Thai	languag่	ar่	th่	o้icial	statutory	inancial	stat่m่nts	o้	th่	Company.	Th่	
inancial	stat่m่nts	in	English	languag่	hav่	b่่n	translat่d	้rom	th่	Thai	languag่	inancial	stat่m่nts.

Th่	inancial	stat่m่nts	hav่	b่่n	pr่par่d	on	a	historical	cost	basis	่xc่pt	wh่r่	oth่rwis่	disclos่d	in	
the accounting policies.

3. New inancial reporting standards 

B่low	is	a	summary	o้	inancial	r่porting	standards	that	b่cam่	่้้่ctiv่	in	th่	curr่nt	accounting	y่ar	and	
those that will become effective in the future.

(a) Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current accounting year

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (revised 2014)

Accounting Standards:

TAS 1  (revised 2012)  Presentation of Financial Statements

TAS 7  (revised 2012)  Statement of Cash Flows

TAS 12  (revised 2012)  Income Taxes

TAS 17  (revised 2012)  Leases

TAS 18  (revised 2012)  Revenue

TAS	ะุ		 วr่vis่d	ั0ะัศ		 Employ่่	B่n่its
TAS 21  (revised 2012)  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

TAS 24  (revised 2012)  Related Party Disclosures

TAS 28  (revised 2012)  Investments in Associates

TAS 31  (revised 2012)  Interests in Joint Ventures

TAS 34  (revised 2012)  Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 36  (revised 2012)  Impairment of Assets

TAS 38  (revised 2012)  Intangible Assets

Financial Reporting Standards:

TFRS 2  (revised 2012) Share-based Payment

TFRS 3  (revised 2012) Business Combinations

S P V I Public Company Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2014
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TFRS	ิ		 วr่vis่d	ั0ะัศ	 Non-curr่nt	Ass่ts	H่ld	้or	Sal่	and	Discontinu่d	Op่rations
TFRS 8  (revised 2012)  Operating Segments

Accounting Standard Interpretations:

TSIC 15  Operating Leases - Incentives

TSIC 27  Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal  

  Form of a Lease

TSIC 29  Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

TSIC 32  Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:

TFRIC 1   Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar  

  Liabilities

TFRIC 4   Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

TFRIC 5   Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration  

  and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

TFRIC 7    Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29 Financial  

	 	 R่porting	in	Hyp่rinlationary	Economi่s
TFRIC 10   Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

TFRIC 12  Service Concession Arrangements

TFRIC 13  Customer Loyalty Programmes

TFRIC	ะ7		 Distributions	o้	Non-cash	Ass่ts	to	Own่rs
TFRIC 18  Transfers of Assets from Customers

Accounting Treatment Guidance for Stock Dividend

Th่s่	inancial	 r่porting	standards	w่r่	am่nd่d	primarily	 to	align	 th่ir	cont่nt	with	 th่	corr่sponding	
International Financial Reporting Standards. Most of the changes were directed towards revision of wording and 

terminology, and provision of interpretations and accounting guidance to users of the accounting standards. These 

inancial	r่porting	standards	do	not	hav่	any	signiicant	impact	on	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts.

(b) Financial reporting standards that will become effective in the future

Th่	F่d่ration	o้	Accounting	Pro้่ssions	has	issu่d	a	numb่r	o้	r่vis่d	and	n่w	inancial	r่porting	standards	
that	b่com่	่ ้้่ctiv่	้ or	iscal	y่ars	b่ginning	on	or	a้t่r	ะ	January	ั 0ะิ.	Th่s่	inancial	r่porting	standards	w่r่	
aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards, with most of the changes 

directed towards revision of wording and terminology, and provision of interpretations and accounting guidance to 

us่rs	o้	accounting	standards.	Th่	manag่m่nt	o้	th่	Company	b่li่v่s	th่y	will	not	hav่	any	signiicant	impact	
on	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts	in	th่	y่ar	in	which	th่y	ar่	adopt่d.	How่v่rห	som่	o้	th่s่	inancial	r่porting	stand-

ards involve changes to key principles, as discussed below:

TAS 19 (revised 2014) Employee Beneits
This revised standard requires that the entity recognize actuarial gains and losses immediately in other com-

prehensive income while the existing standard allows the entity to recognise such gains and losses immediately in 

proit	or	lossห	or	in	oth่r	compr่h่nsiv่	incom่ห	or	to	r่cognis่	th่m	gradually	in	proit	or	loss.	
	This	r่vis่d	standard	do่s	not	hav่	any	impact	on	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts	as	th่	Company	alr่ady	r่cog-

nised actuarial gains and losses immediately in other comprehensive income.
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TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

This standard provides guidance on how to measure fair value and stipulates disclosures related to fair  

valu่	m่asur่m่nts.	Entiti่s	ar่	to	apply	th่	guidanc่	und่r	this	standard	i้	th่y	ar่	r่quir่d	by	oth่r	inancial	
reporting standards to measure their assets or liabilities at fair value. The effect of the change from the adoption of 

this standard is to be recognised prospectively.

Based on the preliminary analysis, the management of the Company believes that this standard will not have 

any	signiicant	impact	on	th่	Company’s	inancial	stat่m่nts.	
 

4. Signiicant accounting policies
4.1 Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

Sal่s	o้	goods	ar่	r่cognis่d	wh่n	th่	signiicant	risks	and	r่wards	o้	own่rship	o้	th่	goods	hav่	pass่d	
to the buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting discounts 

and allowances.

Rendering of services

Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion. 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.  

4.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an 

original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

4.3 Trade accounts receivable 

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided 

for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on  

collection experience and analysis of debt aging. 

4.4 Inventories 

Finish่d	goods	ar่	valu่d	at	th่	low่r	o้	cost	วund่r	irst-inห	irst-out	m่thodศ	and	n่t	r่alisabl่	valu่.
The net realisable value of inventory is estimated from the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less the estimated costs to complete the sale.

Allowance for diminution in inventory value will be set up for obsolete, slow moving or deteriorated inventories.

4.5 Equipment/Depreciation
Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line basis over the following 

estimated useful lives: 

  Leasehold improvement  - 5 years

  Computer   - 3 years

	 	 O้ic่	่quipm่nt		 	 -	 ิ	y่ars
	 	 Furnitur่	and	ixtur่s	 	 -	 ิ	y่ars
  Motor vehicles   - 5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income. 

No	d่pr่ciation	is	provid่d	on	construction	in	progr่ss.
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4.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss (if any).

Intangibl่	ass่ts	with	init่	liv่s	ar่	amortis่d	on	a	syst่matic	basis	ov่r	th่	่conomic	us่้ul	li้่	and	t่st่d	
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and 

th่	amortisation	m่thod	o้	such	intangibl่	ass่ts	ar่	r่vi่w่d	at	l่ast	at	่ach	inancial	y่ar	่nd.	Th่	amortisation	
่xp่ns่	is	charg่d	to	proit	or	loss.

A	summary	o้	th่	intangibl่	ass่ts	with	init่	us่้ul	liv่s	ar่	as	้ollowsู

                                                    Useful lives

  Computer software            5 years

4.7 Leasehold rights

Leasehold right is amortised on the straight-line basis over the lease period.

4.8 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether 

directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include company and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the Company 

that	giv่s	 th่m	signiicant	 inlu่nc่	ov่r	 th่	Companyห	k่y	manag่m่nt	p่rsonn่lห	dir่ctors	and	o้ic่rs	with	
authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

4.9 Long-term lease agreements 

L่as่s	o้	่quipm่nt	which	do	not	trans้่r	substantially	all	th่	risks	and	r่wards	o้	own่rship	ar่	classii่d	
as	op่rating	l่as่s.	Op่rating	l่as่	paym่nts	ar่	r่cognis่d	as	an	่xp่ns่	in	proit	or	 loss	on	a	straight	lin่	
basis over the lease term.

4.10 Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the equipment 

and intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An 

impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value 

less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An	impairm่nt	loss	is	r่cognis่d	in	proit	or	loss.	

4.11 Employee beneits
Short-term employee beneits
Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when 

incurred.

Post-employment beneits 

D่in่d	contribution	plans
The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly contributed by 

employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the Company’s contribu-

tions are recognised as expenses when incurred.
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Deined beneit plans 
The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon  

r่tir่m่nt	und่r	labor	law.	Th่	Company	tr่ats	th่s่	s่v่ranc่	paym่nt	obligations	as	a	d่in่d	b่n่it	plan.	
Th่	obligation	und่r	th่	d่in่d	b่n่it	plan	is	d่t่rmin่d	bas่d	on	actuarial	t่chniqu่sห	using	th่	Proj่ct่d	

Unit Credit Method by an independent actuarial company. 

Actuarial	 gains	 and	 loss่s	 arising	 ้rom	post-่mploym่nt	 b่n่its	 ar่	 r่cognis่d	 imm่diat่ly	 in	 oth่r	 
comprehensive income. 

Th่	d่in่d	b่n่its	liability	compris่s	th่	pr่s่nt	valu่	o้	th่	d่in่d	b่n่it	obligation	l่ss	unr่cognis่d	
past service cost and unrecognised actuarial gains or losses.

4.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is  

probabl่	that	an	outlow	o้	r่sourc่s	่mbodying	่conomic	b่n่its	will	b่	r่quir่d	to	s่ttl่	th่	obligationห	and	a	
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

4.13 Income Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, 

bas่d	on	taxabl่	proits	d่t่rmin่d	in	accordanc่	with	tax	l่gislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 

their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting 

period. 

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they recognise 

deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is 

probabl่	that	้utur่	taxabl่	proit	will	b่	availabl่	against	which	such	d่ductibl่	t่mporary	di้้่r่nc่s	and	tax	
losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the 

่xt่nt	that	it	is	no	long่r	probabl่	that	su้ici่nt	taxabl่	proit	will	b่	availabl่	to	allow	all	or	part	o้	th่	d่้่rr่d	tax	
asset to be utilised.

The Company records deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax relates to items that are recorded 

directly to shareholders’ equity. 

5. Signiicant accounting judgments and estimates
Th่	pr่paration	o้	inancial	stat่m่nts	in	con้ormity	with	inancial	r่porting	standards	at	tim่s	r่quir่s	man-

agement to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judg-

ments and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Signiicant	judgm่nts	and	่stimat่s	ar่	as	้ollowsู
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Leases 

In	d่t่rmining	wh่th่r	a	l่as่	is	to	b่	classii่d	as	an	op่rating	l่as่	or	inanc่	l่as่ห	th่	manag่m่nt	is	
r่quir่d	to	us่	judgm่nt	r่garding	wh่th่r	signiicant	risk	and	r่wards	o้	own่rship	o้	th่	l่as่d	ass่t	has	b่่n	
transferred, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement. 

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and estimates 

bas่d	uponห	among	oth่r	thingsห	d่bt	coll่ction	historyห	aging	proil่	o้	outstanding	d่bts	and	th่	pr่vailing	่co-

nomic condition. 

Allowance for diminution in value of inventory

The determination of allowances for diminution in the value of inventory, requires management to make judgments 

and estimates. The allowance for decline in net realizable value is estimated based on the selling price expected 

in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to complete the sales; and provision for obsolete, slow-

moving and deteriorated inventories that is estimated based on the approximate aging of each type of inventory.

 Equipment/Depreciation
In determining depreciation of equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful lives and 

residual values of the equipment and to review estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review equipment for impairment on a periodical basis and record 

impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This re-

quires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent 

that	it	is	probabl่	that	taxabl่	proit	will	b่	availabl่	against	which	th่	t่mporary	di้้่r่nc่s	and	loss่s	can	b่	
utilis่d.	Signiicant	manag่m่nt	judgm่nt	is	r่quir่d	to	d่t่rmin่	th่	amount	o้	d่้่rr่d	tax	ass่ts	that	can	b่	
r่cognis่dห	bas่d	upon	th่	lik่ly	timing	and	l่v่l	o้	่stimat่	้utur่	taxabl่	proits.	

Post-employment beneits under deined beneit plans 

Th่	obligation	und่r	th่	d่in่d	b่n่it	plan	is	d่t่rmin่d	bas่d	on	actuarial	t่chniqu่s.	Such	d่t่rmina-

tion is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and 

staff turnover rate.

6. Related party transactions

During	th่	y่arsห	th่	Company	had	signiicant	busin่ss	transactions	with	r่lat่d	parti่s.	Such	transactionsห	
which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms 

and bases agreed upon between the Company and those related parties. 
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Transactions with major shareholder
(IT City Public Company Limited)

2014

162

2

2

2

3

-

-

-

6

6

2013

305

2

35

4

4

1

6

4

7

6

Pricing policy

Approximate wholesale market price 

Prices agreed by the parties   

At the declared rate

Market price

Market price

Market price

Market price

Prices agreed by the parties

Prices agreed by the parties

Prices agreed by the parties

Sales of goods 

Service fee expenses

Dividends

Transactions with related companies

Sales of goods 

Purchases of goods 

Purchas่s	o้	ix่d	ass่ts
Purchases of intangible assets

Management fee

Service expenses

Logistics and distribution fee

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those related 

companies are as follows:

Trade and other receivables - related parties (Note 8)

Major shareholder
Related companies (related by common shareholders and 

  common directors)

Total trade and other receivables - related parties

Trade and other payables - related parties (Note 16)

Major shareholder
Related companies (related by common shareholders and 

  common directors)

Total trade and other payables - related parties

4,186

98

4,284

575

1,854

2,429

26,901

117

27,018

546

9,221

9,767

2014 2013

 (Unit: Million Baht)

 (Unit: Thousand Baht)

Directors and management’s beneits
During	th่	y่ars	่ nd่d	าะ	D่c่mb่r	ั 0ะ4	and	ั 0ะาห	th่	Company	had	่ mploy่่	b่n่it	่ xp่ns่s	payabl่	

to their directors and management as below.

Short-t่rm	่mploy่่	b่n่its
Post-่mploym่nt	b่n่its
Total

18.9

0.4

19.3

18.7

0.4

19.1

2014 2013

(Unit: Million Baht)
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8. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables - related parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

	 Not	y่t	du่
Total trade receivables - related parties

Trade receivables - unrelated parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

	 Not	y่t	du่
 Past due

 Up to 3 months

  3 - 6 months

 6 - 12 months

 Over 12 months

Total

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net

Total trade receivable - net

Other receivables

Other receivables - unrelated parties

Total other receivables

Total trade and other receivables - net

4,284

4,284

24,338

4,246

21

-

642

29,247

(665)

28,582

32,866

221

221

33,087

27,018

27,018

74,558

21,061

299

23

59

96,000

(694)

95,306

122,324

254

254

122,578

2014 2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Cash

Bank deposits 

Total

1,266

126,721

127,987

896

49,188

50,084

2014 2013

Guarantee obligations with related parties

As at 31 December 2013, a total of Baht 200 million of credit facilities granted to the Company by a commercial 

bank was guaranteed by major shareholder, a related party and directors.  

During the period 2014, the Company changed credit facilities to Baht 205 million and USD 0.2 million or  

่quival่nt	and	chang่d	th่	guarant่่	o้	such	cr่dit	้ aciliti่s	to	b่	ix่d	d่posit	at	bank	o้	Baht	า0	million.	How่v่rห	
on 10 September 2014, the Company cancelled all of the above credit facilities and guarantee of such credit facilities.

7. Cash and cash equivalents

As	at	าะ	D่c่mb่r	ั0ะ4ห	bank	d่posits	in	savings	accounts	and	ix่d	d่posits	carri่d	int่r่sts	b่tw่่n	
0.125 and 1.125 percent per annum (2013: between 0.50 and 1.75 percent per annum).

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
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Value added tax refundable

Others

Total other current liabilities

9,255

3,411

12,666

15,130

3,549

18,679

2014 2013

11. Restricted bank deposits

Th่	Company	pl่dg่d	ix่d	d่posits	at	bank	totaling	approximat่ly	Baht	0.ั	million	วาะ	D่c่mb่r	ั0ะาู	
Baht 0.2 million) with a bank to secure the credit facilities of the Company.

Finished goods

Less: Reduce cost to net realisable value

Inventories - net

196,420

(9,911)

186,509

168,883

(12,038)

156,845

2014 2013

9. Inventories

During the current year, the Company reversed the reduce cost of inventories by Baht 2.1 million (2013:  

r่duc่d	cost	o้	inv่ntori่s	by	Baht	ิ .ะ	millionศห	to	r่l่ct	th่	n่t	r่alisabl่	valu่.	This	was	pr่s่nt่d	as	cost	o้	sal่s.

10. Other current assets

The outstanding balance of other current assets as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

 (Unit: Thousand Baht)

 (Unit: Thousand Baht)
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Cost:

1  January 2013

Additions

Disposals and write-off

Transfers in (out)

31 December 2013

Additions

Disposals and write-off

Transfers in (out)

31 December 2014

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2013

Depreciation for the year

Depreciation on disposals 

and write-off

31 December 2013

Depreciation for the year

Depreciation on disposals 

and write-off

31 December 2014

N่t	book	valuู่
31 December 2013

31 December 2014

Depreciation for the year:

 

-

-

-

2,000

2,000

-

-

-

2,000

-

56

-

56

568

-

624

1,944

1,376

6,428

1,965

(27)

-

8,366

1,559

-

-

9,925

2,902

2,395

(3)

5,294

1,984

-

7,278

3,072

2,647

5,998

1,035

(10)

-

7,023

1,336

-

-

8,359

1,541

1,350

(5)

2,886

1,499

-

4,385

4,137

3,974

41,527

5,753

(926)

2,699

49,053

2,598

(3,448)

4,485

52,688

10,270

9,021

(216)

19,075

9,935

(1,324)

27,686

29,978

25,002

845

-

-

-

845

-

-

-

845

169

169

-

338

169

-

507

507

338

552

4,699

(552)

(4,699)

-

4,485

-

(4,485)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

55,350

13,452

(1,515)

-

67,287

9,978

(3,448)

-

73,817

14,882

12,991

(224)

27,649

14,155

(1,324)

40,480

39,638

33,337

12,991

14,155

Leasehold

improvement

Ofice
equipment

Furniture 

and ixtures
Motor

vehicles

Construction

in progress TotalComputer

12. Equipment

2013 (included in administrative expenses)

2014 (included in administrative expenses)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
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Cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation

N่t	book	valu่	

Leasehold right - cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation

N่t	book	valu่

N่t	book	valu่	at	b่ginning	o้	y่ar	
Amortisation for the year

N่t	book	valu่	at	่nd	o้	y่ar

N่t	book	valu่	at	b่ginning	o้	y่ar	
Acquisition of computer software   

Amortisation for the year

N่t	book	valu่	at	่nd	o้	y่ar

9,931

(2,951)

6,980

9,377

(1,782)

7,595

8,053

(458)

7,595

8,098

802

(1,920)

6,980

9,129

(1,031)

8,098

9,377

(1,324)

8,053

8,512

(459)

8,053

1,978

6,666

(546)

8,098

2014

2014

2014

2014

2013

2013

2013

2013

13. Intangible assets 

The net book value of intangible assets, which are computer software, as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is 

presented below.

14. Leasehold right

On 9 February 2011, the Company entered into a leasehold agreement for lease of space in Esplanade Cineplex 

from S P V Comretail Co., Ltd. The agreement is in force as from 11 February 2011 to August 2031, or a total of 20 

years, 5 months and 24 days. The Company paid for the leasehold rights for the entire agreement period amounting 

to Baht 9.4 million and amortised leasehold rights using the straight line basis throughout the agreement period.

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2014 and 2013 is presented below.   

A reconciliation of the net book value of leasehold right for the years 2014 and 2013 is presented below.   

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
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Trade payables - related parties

Trade payables - unrelated parties

Other payables - related parties

Other payables - unrelated parties

Total trade and other payables 

Deined beneit obligation at beginning of year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Provision for long-term employee beneits at end of year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Total expense recognised in proit or loss
Lin่	it่ms	in	proit	or	loss	und่r	which	such	่ xp่ns่s	ar่	includ่d	
Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

313

128,116

2,116

8,185

138,730

5,695

465

228

6,388

465

228

693

21

672

-

122,484

9,767

9,227

141,478

5,054

439

202

5,695

439

202

641

19

622

2014

2014

2014

2013

2013

2013

15. Other non-current assets

The outstanding balance of other non-current assets as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are disposits.

16. Trade and other payables
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

17. Provision for long-term employee beneits 
	 Provision	้ or	long-t่rm	่ mploy่่	b่n่itsห	which	r่pr่s่nts	comp่nsation	payabl่	to	่ mploy่่s	a้t่r	th่y	
retire from the Company, was as follows:

Long-t่rm	่mploy่่	b่n่it	่xp่ns่s	includ่d	in	th่	proit	or	loss	consist	o้	th่	้ollowingู
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Key actuarial assumptions used for the valuation are as follows:

Th่	amounts	o้	d่in่d	b่n่it	obligation	้or	th่	curr่nt	y่ar	and	th่	past	two	y่ars	ar่	as	้ollowsู

Discount rate

Future salary increase rate 

Employee turnover rate (depending on age)

Year 2014

Year 2013

Year 2012

(% per annum)

4.00

4.00 - 6.50

10.00 - 40.00

(% per annum)

4.00

4.00 - 6.50

10.00 - 40.00

6,388

5,695

5,054

2014

Deined beneit obligation

2013

18. Share capital

On 26 March 2013, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company passed resolutions as the 

follows:

18.1 To transform the Company into a public limited company and list the Company on the MAI. The Company 

registered its transformation with the Ministry of Commerce on 10 April 2013.

18.2 To change the par value of the Company’s ordinary shares from Baht 10 per share to Baht 0.50 per 

share, resulting in an increase in the number of ordinary shares from 12,000,000 shares to 240,000,000 shares. The 

Company registered the change in the par value of the Company’s ordinary shares with the Ministry of Commerce 

on 10 April 2013.

18.3 To increase the Company’s registered share capital from Baht 120 million (240 million ordinary shares of 

Baht	0.ิ0	p่r	shar่	a้t่r	th่	par	valu่	is	chang่d	as	discuss่d	in	Not่	ะื.ัศ	to	Baht	ั 00	million	ว400	million	ordinary	
shares of Baht 0.50 per share) by issuing 160,000,000 new ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 0.50 each. The 

Company registered the increase of its registered share capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 10 April 2013.

18.4 To allocate 160,000,000 new ordinary shares as follows: 

1) 50,000,000 ordinary shares to be offered to existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholding in the 

Company (rights offering) with a subscription ratio of 1 new share for every 4.8 existing shares with an offer price of 

Baht 0.50 per share.

In April 2013, the Company received payment amounting to Baht 25,000,000 for 50,000,000 shares of  

additional share capital. As a result, issued and paid-up share capital of the Company equaled Baht 145 million 

(290 million ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 each). The Company registered the increase in its paid-up share capital 

with the Ministry of Commerce on 30 April 2013. 

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
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2) 104,500,000 ordinary shares reserved for initial public offering and assign an executive committee or a 

person who was authorised by the executive committee to determine conditions and other details relevant to the 

allocation of shares and to take any actions deemed necessary or incidental to the offering of shares in all respects, 

as well as to appoint a distributor and underwriter. The executive committee is also responsible for the preparation 

of requests and supporting documents that are to be submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission and 

other related agencies as well as other agreements that are relevant to such operations.

3) 5,500,000 ordinary shares reserved to be offered to directors and/or employees of the Company.

18.5 During 11 - 13 December 2013, the Company offered 110 million ordinary shares, with a par value of 

Baht 0.50 each, at a price of Baht 0.90 each through the Initial Public Offering and directors and employees of the 

Company. The Company registered the increase of its issued and paid-up share capital from Baht 145 million (290 

million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 0.50 each) to Baht 200 million (400 million ordinary shares with a par 

value of Baht 0.50 each) with the Ministry of Commerce on 16 December 2013, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

approved the 400 million ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 0.50 each as listed securities for trading, effective 

from 19 December 2013. The Company incurred expenses relating to the share offering totaling Baht 4.2 million  

(net of income tax of Baht 1 million), which were presented as a deduction from the share premium.

19. Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside 

to	a	statutory	r่s่rv่	at	l่ast	ิ	p่rc่nt	o้	its	n่t	proit	a้t่r	d่ducting	accumulat่d	d่icit	brought	้orward	วi้	anyศห	
until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital.  The statutory reserve is not available for dividend 

distribution. 

During	th่	y่ar	ั0ะ4ห	th่	Company	s่t	asid่	an	additional	statutory	r่s่rv่	o้	its	n่t	proit	้or	ั0ะ4	o้	Baht	
0.ื	million	วั0ะาู	th่	Company	s่t	asid่	statutory	r่s่rv่	o้	its	n่t	proit	้ or	ั 0ะั	and	ั 0ะา	totaling	Baht	ิ .ี	millionศ.

20. Other income

Income from selling of database

Selling support income

Commission income

Gain on exchange 

Interest income

Others

Total

3,800

3,495

1,370

941

876

1,526

12,008

4,673

1,634

918

1,047

846

1,613

10,731

2014 2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
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21. Expenses by nature
Signiicant	่xp่ns่s	classii่d	by	natur่	ar่	as	้ollowsู

22. Income tax 

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are made up as follows:

Salari่s	and	wag่s	and	oth่r	่mploy่่	b่n่its
Rental and service center expenses from operating 

    lease agreements

Chang่	in	inv่ntori่s	o้	inish่d	goods
Credit card fee

Depreciation and amortization

Logistics and distribution fee

Utilities expenses

O้ic่	supply	่xp่ns่s
Transportation

101,999

27,672

(27,537)

20,167

16,533

5,635

4,729

2,274

40

106,460

24,553

22,084

17,843

13,996 

6,390

5,274

2,708

63

2014 2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  

Income tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive 

            income

3,989

293

4,282

5,607

(1,227)

4,380

2014 2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
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Accounting	proit	b่้or่	tax
Applicable tax rate

Accounting	proit	b่้or่	tax	multipli่d	by	incom่	tax	rat่
Effects of:

		Non-d่ductibl่	่xp่ns่s
  Additional expense deductions allowed

Total

Income tax expenses reported in the statement of comprehensive

   income

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for diminution in value of inventories

Provision	้or	long-t่rm	่mploy่่	b่n่its
Total

19,998

20%

4,000

283

(1)

282

4,282

133

1,982

1,278

3,393

20,637

20%

4,127

279

(26)

253

4,380

139

2,407

1,139

3,685

2014

As at                   
31 December 

2014                  

As at                   
31 December 

2013                   

2013

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Th่	r่conciliation	b่tw่่n	accounting	proit	and	incom่	tax	่xp่ns่	is	shown	b่low.

The components of deferred tax assets are as follows:

Statements of inancial position

23. Basic earnings per share

Basic	่ arnings	p่r	shar่	is	calculat่d	by	dividing	proit	้ or	th่	y่ar	ว่xcluding	oth่r	compr่h่nsiv่	incom่ศ	
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, after adjusting the number of ordinary 

shares in proportion to the change in the number of shares as a result of the change in par value from Baht 10 each 

to	Baht	0.ิ0	่ach	as	discuss่d	in	Not่	ะื.ั	to	th่	inancial	stat่m่nts.	Th่	numb่r	o้	ordinary	shar่s	is	adjust่d	
as if the changes in number of shares and per value had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period reported.
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Proit	้or	th่	y่ar	วThousand	Bahtศ
Numb่r	o้	ordinary	shar่s	a้t่r	r่l่cting	th่	r่sult	o้	chang่	
   in par value (Thousand shares)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares         

   (Thousand shares)

Earnings per share (Baht/share)

15,716

400,000

400,000

0.04

16,257

400,000

278,521

0.06

2014 2013

24. Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports that are regularly 

reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about the allocation of resources to the 

s่gm่nt	and	ass่ss	its	p่r้ormanc่.	Th่	chi่้	op่rating	d่cision	mak่r	has	b่่n	id่ntii่d	as	Managing	Dir่ctor.	
The one main reportable operating segment of the Company is the distribution of computers and related ac-

cessories and the single geographical area of its operations is Thailand. Segment performance is measured based 

on	op่rating	proit	or	lossห	on	a	basis	consist่nt	with	that	us่d	to	m่asur่	op่rating	proit	or	loss	in	th่	inancial	
stat่m่nts.	As	a	r่sultห	all	o้	th่	r่v่nu่sห	op่rating	proits	and	ass่ts	as	r่l่ct่d	in	th่s่	inancial	stat่m่nts	
pertain to the aforementioned reportable operating segment and geographical area.

25. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident 

Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company contribute to the fund monthly at the rate of 5 percent of 

basic salary. The fund, which is managed by Kasikorn Asset Management Co., Ltd., will be paid to employees upon 

termination in accordance with the fund rules. During the year 2014, the Company contributed Baht 1,457,832 (2013: 

Baht 816,329) to the fund.

26. Dividend 

On 26 March 2013, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company passed a resolution to 

approv่	a	inal	divid่nd	้or	ั0ะั	o้	Baht	7.าาา4	p่r	shar่ห	or	a	total	o้	Baht	ืื	million.	Th่	Company	paid	such	
dividend in April 2013.

On 4 April 2014, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company passed a resolution approving 

the payment of a dividend in respect of income for the year 2013 of Baht 0.0163 per share, or a total of Baht 6.52 

million. The Company paid such dividend in April 2014.

27. Commitments and contingent liabilities

27.1 Operating lease commitments

27.1.1 The Company has entered into a logistics and distribution services agreement with a related company 

whereby the Company was obliged to pay for the service fee on a basis and at a rate as stipulated in the agreement. 

The term of agreement is 1 year and 3 months and shall be renewal for another year each time, unless cancelled 

by either party.
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27.1.2 The Company has entered into several operating lease contracts and service contracts in respect of 

th่	l่as่	o้	o้ic่	buildingห	war่hous่	and	branch	ar่as.	Th่	t่rms	o้	th่	agr่่m่nts	ar่	g่n่rally	b่tw่่n	ะ	
and 21 years. 

Future minimum lease payments required under these non-cancellable operating lease contracts and service 

contracts were as follows.

27.2 Guarantees

As at 31 December 2014, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 277.8 million (2013: 

Baht 327.2 million) issued by bank on behalf of the Company in respect of the purchase of goods and services  

as required in the ordinary course of business of the Company.

28. Financial instruments

28.1 Financial risk management

Th่	Company’s	 inancial	 instrum่ntsห	 as	 d่in่d	 und่r	 Thai	 Accounting	 Standard	No.ะ07	 “Financial	 
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, current investments, 

trad่	and	oth่r	 r่c่ivabl่s	 and	 trad่	and	oth่r	payabl่s.	 Th่	 inancial	 risks	 associat่d	with	 th่s่	 inancial	 
instruments and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade and other receivables. The Company 

manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore does not expect  

to	incur	mat่rial	inancial	loss่s.	In	additionห	th่	Company	do่s	not	hav่	high	conc่ntrations	o้	cr่dit	risk	sinc่	
it has a large customer base. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of trade and 

oth่r	r่c่ivabl่s	as	stat่d	in	th่	stat่m่nt	o้	inancial	position.

Payable within:

  Less than 1 year

  1 to 5 years

  More than 5 years

27.4

31.7

6.4

21.9

15.1

6.9

2014 2013

(Unit: Million Baht)
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Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 

Current investments

Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 

Current investments

Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

US dollar

Euro

2014

(Thousand)

20

8

2013

 (Thousand)

24

-

2014

(Baht per 1 foreign 

 currency unit)

33.1132

40.3552

2013

(Baht per 1 foreign 

 currency unit)

32.9494

45.3223

10

2

-

12

-

-

17

2

-

19

-

-

111

-

-

111

-

-

23

-

-

23

-

-

7

-

33

40

139

139

10

-

123

133

141

141

128

2

33

163

139

139

50

2

123

175

141

141

0.125 - 1.125

1.70

-

0.50 - 1.75

2.00

-

-

Fixed interest 

rates within

1 year

Fixed interest 

rates within

1 year

Foreign currency
Financial liabilities as at                       

31 December 2014

Average selling rate as at                    

31 December 2014

Floating

interest

rate

Floating

interest

rate

Non-int่r่st
bearing

Non-int่r่st
bearing

Total

Total

Effective

interest

rate

Effective

interest

rate

 (Unit: Million Baht)

 (Unit: Million Baht)

(% per annum)

(% per annum)

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from purchasing transactions that are  

denominated in foreign currencies. 

Th่	balanc่s	o้	inancial	liabiliti่s	d่nominat่d	in	้or่ign	curr่nci่s	ar่	summaris่d	b่low.	
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ัื.ั		Fair	valu่s	o้	inancial	instrum่nts
Sinc่	th่	majority	o้	th่	Company’s	inancial	instrum่nts	ar่	short-t่rm	in	natur่ห	th่ir	้ air	valu่	is	not	่ xp่ct่d	

to	b่	mat่rially	di้้่r่nt	้rom	th่	amounts	pr่s่nt่d	in	th่	stat่m่nts	o้	inancial	position.	
A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, 

willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the 

inancial	instrum่nt	or	by	using	an	appropriat่	valuation	t่chniqu่ห	d่p่nding	on	th่	natur่	o้	th่	instrum่nt.	
 

29. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate capital struc-

ture in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s 

debt-to-equity ratio was 0.53:1 (2013: 0.55:1).

30. Reclassiication
Certain amounts in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been 

r่classii่d	to	con้orm	to	th่	curr่nt	y่ar’s	classiication.	

Sales

Service income

Other income

Cost of services

2,280,050

12,217

10,731

6,555

2,277,050

19,624

8,179

8,410

As reclassiied As previously reported

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Th่	r่classiication	had	no	่้้่ct	to	pr่viously	r่port่d	proit	or	shar่hold่rs’	่quity.

31. Approval of inancial statements
Th่s่	inancial	stat่m่nts	w่r่	authoris่d	้ or	issu่	by	th่	Company’s	Board	o้	Dir่ctors	on	ะ7	F่bruary	ั 0ะิ.
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iStudio by SPVi

ชĔน้	า	อĕคĕĆĂอĆจ์ĜนทĕĊน ์	วġทĆ.	0ั-ี4ั-0ืัี-7ห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิ4ุศ	 าrd
 Floor IT Mall, Fortune Town 

ชĔน้	4	ċĜนąก์ĕĆค ňĕğซน็ทĆĔล	āลĕซŇĕ	Ġจ ňงĊĔฒนēวġทĆ.	0ั-ะ0ะ-0ืุ0-ะห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิีุศ	 4th
 Floor Central Plaza Changwattana 

ชĔน้	G	อĕคĕĆซĘคอนčĠคĊĆ ์	วġทĆ.	0ั-7ั0-ัุืื-ุห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิ7ุศ	 G	Floor	S่acon	Squar่ 

ชĔน้	4	ċĜนąก์ĕĆค ňĕğซน็ทĆĔลāĆēĆĕĄ	ุ	วġทĆ.	0ั-ะ0ื-าั4ะ-ัห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิิุศ	 4th
 Floor Central Plaza Grand Rama 9 

ชĔน้	ะ	ċĜนąก์ĕĆค ňĕğกตğĊą 	์ğอกĄĔą	วġทĆ.	0ั-ะ0ื-ัื44-ิห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิืุศ	 ะst
 Floor Gateway Ekamai

iBeat by SPVi 

ชĔน้	ั	อĕคĕĆğอčāลĕนĕด	วġทĆ.	0ั-ีี0-ุัิุ-ีะห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิิ4ศ	 ัnd
 Floor Esplanade Ratchada 

ชĔน้	4	อĕคĕĆĂอĆจ์ĜนทĕĊน ์	วġทĆ.	0ั-ี4ั-0ีา4-ิห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิิะศ	 4th
 Floor Fortune Town 

ชĔน้	ะ	ċĜนąก์ĕĆค ňĕğซน็ทĆĔล	āลĕซŇĕ	ğชĘąงĆĕą	วġทĆ.	0ิั-0ั0-ืัั-าห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิิ0ศ	 ะst
 Floor Central Plaza Chiang Rai 

อĕคĕĆğทčġก ň	ġลตĔč	čĕขĕ	ĄĎĕชĔąั	วġทĆ.	0า4-ืีี-าิื-ุห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิิัศ		 T่ sco	Lotus	Mahachai	ั	
 

U•Store by SPVi

ċĜนąĎ์นĔงčĚอ	ĄĎĕĊėทąĕลĔąธĆĆĄċĕčตĆĆ์Ĕงčėต	วġทĆ.	0ั-ิี4-าั4ุห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิาัศ	 Thammasat	Univ่rsity	Bookstor่	วRangsitศ 
ċĜนąĎ์นĔงčĚอ	ĄĎĕĊėทąĕลĔąธĆĆĄċĕčตĆท์ŇĕāĆēจĔนทĆ ์	วġทĆ.	0ั-ีัา-ิื00ห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิาิศ	 Thammasat	Univ่rsity	Bookstor่		วThaprachanศ 
ชĔน้	G	อĕคĕĆ	ABAC	Plaza	ĄĎĕĊėทąĕลĔąอĔččĔĄชĔญ	วġทĆ.	0ั-70ิ-ิะุ0ห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิา4ศ	 G	Floorห	ABAC	Plazaห		Assumption	Univ่rsity	
 (Suvarnaphumi Campus) 

ชĔน้	ะ	อĕคĕĆğซนต ์	Ă ลิėปč ์	ĄĎĕĊėทąĕลĔąอĔččĔĄชĔญ	ĊėทąĕğขตĎĔĊĎĄĕก		 ะst
 Floor, St. Philip & Bernard Hall   Assumption 

วġทĆ.	0ั-7ั0-ีื00-ะห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิา7ศ	 Univ่rsity		วHuaMark	Campusศ
ชĔน้	ะ	อĕคĕĆ	ะ0		คณēบĆėĎĕĆธěĆกėจ	ĄĎĕĊėทąĕลĔąğกČตĆċĕčตĆ ์		 ะst

 Floor, Building 10,Faculty of Business

วġทĆ.	0ั-ุิิ-ะิุ0-ะห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิาืศ	 Administrationห	Kas่tsart	Univ่rsity 
อĕคĕĆĎอčĄěดĠลēคลĔงคĊĕĄĆĜ ň	ĄĎĕĊėทąĕลĔąĄĎėดล	ċĕลĕąĕ	 Mahidol	Univ่rsity	Library	and	Knowl่dg่
วġทĆ.	0ั-ื00-ัิิื-ุห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิ40ศ	 C่nt่r	วSalayaศ 
อĕคĕĆอğนกปĆēčงคข์ ňĕงอĕคĕĆ	ะ0	ĄĎĕĊėทąĕลĔąกĆěงğทā	ĊėทąĕğขตĆĔงčėต		 An่k	Prasong	Building	วbuilding	ะ0ศห	Bangkok
วġทĆ.	0ั-ุ0ั-0ี0ี-7ห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิาีศ	 Univ่rsity		วRangsitศ
ชĔน้	ะ	อĕคĕĆ	7	ĄĎĕĊėทąĕลĔąธěĆกėจบĔณฑėต	วġทĆ.	0ั-ุิ4-ุื7ื-ุห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิ4ะศ	 ะst  

Floor, Building 7, Dhurakij Pundit University 

ด ňĕนĎน ňĕอĕคĕĆċĜนąป์ฏėบĔตėกĕĆġĆงĠĆĄğทĕทอง	ĄĎĕĊėทąĕลĔąบĜĆāĕ	วġทĆ.	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิ4ัศ	 In	้ront	o้	Tao-Tong	Hot่l	Op่ration	C่nt่rห		
 Burapha University 

 

iShop

ชĔน้	า	āĔนธท์ėāąā์ลĕซŇĕ	วġทĆ.	0ั-ัิี-0าุ7-ืห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิิาศ	 าrd
 Floor, Pantip Plaza

 

mobi 

ชĔน้	G	อĕคĕĆซĘคอนčĠคĊĆ ์	วġทĆ.	0ั-7ัะ-ืืัิห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิั0ศ	 G	Floorห	S่acon	Squar่ 

ชĔน้	ะ	ċĜนąก์ĕĆค ňĕğดอēĄอลล	์ชอปปิ้งğซ็นğตอĆ์	ĎĔĊĎĄĕก	วġทĆ.	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิ70ศ	 ะst
 Floor, The Mall Shopping Center Huamark 

ชĔน้	า	ċĜนąก์ĕĆค ňĕğดอēĄอลล	์บĕงกēปิ	คอĄğāล็กซ์	วġทĆ.	0ั-7า4-ะา00ห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิุ0ศ	 าrd
 Floor, The Mall Shopping Center Bangkapi 

ชĔน้	ะ	ġคĆงกĕĆอĔċĊĆĆณ	ั		Ďนองคĕą	วġทĆ.	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิี0	ศ”	 ะst
 Floor, Asawann Shopping Complex II 

	 วNongkhaiศ	

Smart Bar

ชĔน้	า	อĕคĕĆĂอĆจ์ĜนทĕĊน ์	วġทĆ.	0ั-ี4ั-0ืัี-ื	ตŇอ	ะะ-ะ4ห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิีัห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิีาศ	 าrd
 Floor, IT Mall Fortune Town 

ชĔน้	4	ċĜนąก์ĕĆค ňĕğซน็ทĆĔลāลĕซĕ	Ġจ ňงĊĔฒนē	วġทĆ.	0ั-ืาิ-าุุา-4ห		 4th
 Floor, Central Changwattana

095-372-5591, 095-372-5592) 

ชĔน้	4	ċĜนąก์ĕĆค ňĕğซน็ทĆĔลāĆēĆĕĄ	ุ	วġทĆ.	0ั-ะะ7-4ุ0า-4ห	0ุิ-า7ั-ิิิีศ	 4th
 Floor, Central Grand Rama 9
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